
 
The mission of OCFEC is… 

CELEBRATION OF ORANGE COUNTY’S  
COMMUNITIES, INTERESTS, AGRICULTURE AND HERITAGE 

(with results justifying resources expended) 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

32ND District Agricultural Association 
OCFEC Board of Directors 

Thursday, October 22, 2015 
9:00 a.m. 

 
Administration Building 
OC Fair & Event Center 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, California 

 
Board of Directors 

 
Ashleigh Aitken, Board Chair 
Gerardo Mouet, Vice Chair 

Stanley Tkaczyk, Member 
Douglas La Belle, Member 

Nick Berardino, Member 

Barbara Bagneris, Member 
Sandra Cervantes, Member 
Bao Nguyen, Member 

     Robert Ruiz, Member  
 
  

Secretary-Treasurer                32nd DAA Counsel 
Kathy Kramer CFE, CMP           Deborah Fletcher 
Chief Executive Officer, OCFEC                                                      Office of the California Attorney General 
 

 
 
Those persons wishing to attend the meeting and who may require special accommodations pursuant to the provisions of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act are requested to contact the office of the 32nd District Agricultural Association (714) 708-1500, at 
least five working days prior to the meeting to insure the proper arrangements can be made. 
 
At the discretion of the Board of Directors, all items appearing on this Agenda, whether or not expressly listed for action, may be 
deliberated and may be subject to action by the Board of Directors.  The Board may convene to closed session pursuant to 
Government Code section 11126, subdivisions (a) and (e) to consider personnel evaluation and/or possible litigation.  Items may 
not necessarily be taken up in the order shown on this Agenda. This agenda, and all notices required by the Bagley-Keene 
Open Meeting Act are available on the Internet at: www.ocfair.com 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
October 22, 2015, PAGE 2 OF 4 

 
AGENDA 

 
1.  CALL TO ORDER 

All matters noticed on this agenda, in any category, may be considered for action as 
listed.  Any item not so noticed may not be considered.  Items listed on this Agenda may 
be considered in any order, at the discretion of the chairperson. 

 
2.  THE MISSION OF OCFEC IS… 

Celebration of Orange County’s Communities, Interests, Agriculture and Heritage (with 
results justifying resources expended). 

 
3.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
4.  ROLL CALL (Policy 4.5.2.B) 
 
5. CEO’S OPERATIONAL ANNOUNCEMENTS AND UPDATES 
 
6.  MATTERS OF PUBLIC COMMENT  

Public comment is allowed on issues NOT on the current Agenda.  However, no debate 
by the Board shall be permitted on such public comments, and no action will be taken on 
such public comment items at this time, as law requires formal public notice prior to any 
action on a docket item. Speakers are requested to sign in prior to the start of the 
meeting and are limited to three minutes.   
 
Comments will be accepted on Agenda items during the meeting.  Speakers wishing to 
address the Board on items on the agenda are requested to sign in prior to the start of 
the meeting and identify the agenda item(s) on which you desire to address the Board. 
Speakers are limited to three minutes. 
 

7. MINUTES: 
 

A.  Board Meeting held September 24, 2015 
 Action Item 
 

8.  CONSENT CALENDAR:  (Policy 4.3.4) 
All matters listed under Consent Calendar are operational matters about which the Board 
has governing policies, implementation of which is delegated to the CEO.  They will be 
enacted in one motion.  There will be no discussion of these items prior to the time the 
Board of Directors votes on the motion, unless members of the board, staff or public 
request specific items to be discussed separately and/or removed from this section.  Any 
member of the public who wishes to discuss Consent Calendar items should notify the 
Chair of the Board, at the time requested and be recognized by invitation of the Chair to 
address the Board. 
 
A. Standard Agreements: SA-145-15FT; SA-168-15FT; SA-170-15FT; SA-201-15SP; 

SA-234-15FT; SA-254-15FT; SA-255-15FT; SA-256-15FT; SA-257-15FT; SA-261-
15SP; SA-262-15SP; SA-263-15SM; SA-264-15MA 
 

 
 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
October 22, 2015, PAGE 3 OF 4 

 
 

B.  Amendments: SA-258-13WC (Amend #1); SA-260-13CS (Amend #1); SA-21-13AM 
(Amend #1); SA-253-15SP (Amend #1); SA-200-15SP (Amend #1); SA-166-15FT 
(Amend # 1) 

   
C. Interagency Agreements: none 
 
D. Letters of Understanding: none 
 
E. Rental Agreements: R-055-15; R-058-15; R-075-15; R-144-15; R-145-15; R-146-15; 

R-147-15; R-148-15; R-149-15; R-017-16; R-018-16; R-023-16 
 
F.   Active Joint Powers Authority Agreements: none. 

 
G. Correspondence 

Communications to the Board from the public in response to Board discussion or to 
comments made before the Board are to be listed on the meeting agenda and 
included in the Board materials as an item of public disclosure.  
 
i. none. 

 
-End of Consent Calendar- 

 
9. GOVERNANCE PROCESS 
 

A. Committee / Task Force / Liaison Reports 
Information Item 
 
To assure compliance with the Bagley-Keene Act, Committee reports are only for the 
purpose of the Committee chair, Task Force members or Liaison to provide a verbal 
update. Should the Board want to discuss any Committee work item not already on 
the agenda; those would need to be agendized for a future Board meeting.  
 

i. Centennial Farm Foundation Board (Vice Chair Mouet) 
ii. Heroes Hall Veteran’s Foundation Board (Director Berardino, Director La Belle) 

  
B.  Arlington Bio-Swale Update 

Action Item 
 
C.  Approve Letter of Understanding with CFFA Regarding Completion of Heroes 

Hall Architectural Design and Construction Documents 
Action Item 
 

D. Ratification of Updated OCFEC Smoking Policy 
  Action Item 
 
E.  Review and Approve the Appointment of the Board Chair to serve on behalf of 

the 32nd District Agricultural Association as an Elector for the California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA) Board of Directors Elections 
Action Item 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
October 22, 2015, PAGE 4 OF 4 

 
 
F. The 32nd District Agricultural Association Board of Directors delegates authority 

to execute all forms of agreements, contracts, and purchase orders without 
further authorization from the Board of Directors (Policy 2.3.5).  All such 
agreements, contracts and purchase orders are to be submitted to the Board of 
Directors for review at subsequent meetings.  This delegation is subject to 
board review at each annual meeting 
Action Item 
 

10. CLOSED SESSION (Closed to the Public) 
 
A. Pending Litigation – The Board will meet in closed session to consult with legal 

counsel regarding the following pending litigation.  [Gov. Code section 11126(e).]  
 

i. To confer with and receive advice from legal counsel regarding potential litigation 
involving the 32nd District Agricultural Association.  Based on existing facts and 
circumstances, the Board of Directors will decide whether to initiate litigation. 

 
ii. To confer with and receive advice from legal counsel regarding potential litigation 

involving the 32nd District Agricultural Association.  Based on existing facts and 
circumstances, there is significant exposure to litigation against the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association. 

 
11.   BOARD OF DIRECTORS MATTERS OF INFORMATION 
 
12.  NEXT BOARD MEETING:  NOVEMBER 19, 2015 
 
13. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Kathy Kramer CFE, CMP  
Secretary-Treasurer                               
Chief Executive Officer, OCFEC    Date of notice: 4:00 p.m. October 12, 2015 



 

OC Fair & Event Center  •  32nd District Agricultural Association 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626  • (714) 708-1500 • ocfair.com 

 

 
 
The following financial reports as of September 30, 2015 are enclosed for 
your reference. 
 
Statement of Cash Flows 
As of September 30, 2015, OCFEC’s cash on hand is $37,959,740; an 
increase of $7,882,629 during the 3rd quarter of 2015.  Operating activities 
have resulted in a net cash inflow of $12,301,330 to date.  Investing activities 
in the form of capital expenditures have resulted in a net outflow of 
$3,160,921 to date. 
 
Balance Sheet 
Accounts Payable increased and remains high due to Fair-related expenses. 
 
Income Statement 
September 2015 year-to-date revenue exceeds expenses by $7,729,677, 
which is favorable to the budgeted net proceeds of ($4,493,281) by 
$3,236,395.  Excluding performance under Major Projects, for which the 
entire 2015 budget of $528K was loaded in January, net proceeds year-to-
date is favorable to budget by $2,923,009. 
  
Total year-to-date revenues of $36,522,012 are favorable to budget by 
$2,548,550 primarily due to favorable performance in Fair Admissions, 
Carnival and Concessions, and Other Event Revenue (parking sales, revenue 
from personnel services, equipment rental and concessions). 
 
Total year-to-date operating expenses of $26,794,834 are favorable to budget 
by $395,499.  Expenses in most major categories are below or close to 
budget at this time, with the exception of Telephone & Postage expense, 
which is over budget YTD by $29,973 (30.6%).  Payroll and related expense 
is favorable to budget by $783,726 (7.0%) due primarily to unfilled positions.  



32nd DAA  

OC Fair & Event Center 

Year to Date 

Business Unit Financial Results 
 

As of September 30, 2015 



$0.0 

$5.0 

$10.0 

$15.0 

$20.0 

$25.0 

$30.0 

$35.0 

$40.0 

J
a
n
 

F
e
b
 

M
a
r 

A
p
r 

M
a
y
 

J
u
n
 

J
u
l 

A
u
g
 

S
e
p
 

O
c
t 

N
o
v
 

D
e
c
 

September 2015 YTD Revenue Performance  

Budget Actual Forecast 



  

-$10.0 

-$5.0 

$0.0 

$5.0 

$10.0 

$15.0 

$20.0 

$25.0 

$30.0 

$35.0 
J
a
n
 

F
e
b
 

M
a
r 

A
p
r 

M
a
y
 

J
u
n
 

J
u
l 

A
u
g
 

S
e
p
 

O
c
t 

N
o
v
 

D
e
c
 

 September 2015 YTD Operating Expense Performance 
Budget Actual Forecast Linear (Actual) 



  

 (10.0) 

 (5.0) 

 -  

 5.0  

 10.0  

 15.0  

Self-Produced Events MktPlace PacAmp Overhead 

$
 i
n

 m
il
li
o

n
s

 

YTD Actual YTD Budget 

September 2015 YTD Contribution Margin by Business Unit 



   OC Fair & Event Center  

 Cash Flow Summary by Business Unit  

 Year to Date as of September, 2015  

2015  2015  2014  2015  

 Year to Date   Year to Date   Year to Date   Full Year  

 Actual   Budget   Actual   Budget  

 Contribution Margins:  

    Self-Produced Events Business Unit             11.8             10.9             13.6             10.0  

    Events Business Unit               3.5               2.8               4.0               3.5  

    MarketPlace Business Unit                   -                   -                   -                   -  

    Pacific Amphitheatre Business Unit               1.6               1.3               1.7               1.1  

 Total Business Unit Contribution Margin             16.9             15.1             19.3             14.5  

    Net Overhead Expense (Cash)             (7.4)            (8.8)            (7.4)          (11.2) 

 Net Cash Provided (Used) Subtotal               9.5               6.3             12.0               3.4  

 Capital Expenditures             (3.2)            (6.8)            (9.7) 

 Balance Sheet Changes               2.8               0.6                   -  

 Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash               9.1               6.3               5.8             (6.3) 



  

-15.0 

-10.0 

-5.0 

0.0 

5.0 

10.0 

15.0 

20.0 

25.0 

30.0 

Actual Budget PY Actual 

Self-Produced Events Business Unit 
September 2015 YTD Contribution Margin 

Direct Revenue Direct Expense Contribution Margin 



  
Self-Produced Events Business Unit 

Contribution Margin Statement 

Year to Date as of September, 2015 

2015 2015 2014 2015 

Year to Date Year to Date Year to Date Full Year 

Actual Budget Actual Budget 

Admissions $7.9  $7.7  $8.3  $7.7  

Concessions 6.5  6.0  6.5  6.0  

Carnival 3.1  3.1  3.5  3.1  

Sponsorships 1.8  1.6  1.6  1.6  

Commercial Space 1.5  1.4  1.5  1.4  

Parking 2.2  2.1  2.3  2.1  

Other Revenue 1.2  1.0  1.1  1.0  

     Total Direct Revenue 24.2  22.9  24.9  22.9  

Payroll/Related 4.1  4.0  3.7  4.3  

Outside Services 1.6  1.6  1.5  2.1  

Marketing/Related 1.3  1.2  1.3  1.2  

Supplies/Equipment/Rentals 2.6  2.5  2.2  2.6  

Attractions 1.1  1.1  1.2  1.1  

Other Expense 1.7  1.5  1.5  1.6  

Total Direct Expense 12.3  12.0  11.3  12.9  

Contribution to Overhead and CapEx $11.8  $10.9  $13.6  $10.0  



  

 (3.0) 

 (2.0) 

 (1.0) 

 -    

 1.0  

 2.0  

 3.0  

 4.0  

 5.0  

 6.0  

 7.0  

Actual Budget PY Actual 

Year-Round Events Business Unit 
September 2015 YTD Contribution Margin 

Direct Revenue Direct Expense Contribution Margin 



  Year-Round Events Business Unit 

Contribution Margin Statement 

Year to Date as of September, 2015 

2015 2015 2014 2015 

Year to Date Year to Date Year to Date Full Year 

Actual Budget Actual Budget 

Rental of Facilities $2.2  $2.0  $2.6  $2.8  

Personnel Services 0.9  0.7  0.7  0.8  

Concessions 0.7  0.6  0.6  0.7  

Equipment Rentals 0.4  0.4  0.5  0.5  

Admissions/Parking 1.4  1.1  1.2  1.3  

Other Revenue 0.1  0.1  0.1  0.1  

     Total Direct Revenue 5.6  4.9  5.7  6.2  

Payroll/Related 1.4  1.5  1.3  2.0  

Outside Services 0.2  0.1  0.1  0.2  

Supplies/Equipment/Rentals 0.1  0.1  0.1  0.1  

Facility/Related 0.3  0.3  0.2  0.4  

Marketing/Related 0.0  0.0  0.1  0.1  

Other Expense 0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  

Total Direct Expense 2.1  2.1  1.7  2.8  

Contribution to Overhead and CapEx $3.5  $2.9  $4.0  $3.5  



-6.0 

-4.0 

-2.0 

0.0 

2.0 

4.0 

6.0 

8.0 

Actual Budget PY Actual 

Pacific Amphitheatre Business Unit 
September 2015 YTD Contribution Margin 

Direct Revenue Direct Expense Contribution Margin 



  
Pacific Amphitheatre Business Unit 

Contribution Margin Statement 

Year to Date as of September, 2015 

2015 2015 2014 2015 

Year to Date Year to Date Year to Date Full Year 

Actual Budget Actual Budget 

Ticket Sales $4.5  $4.1  $4.0  $4.1  

Facility Fee 0.7  0.8  0.7  0.8  

Concessions 0.5  0.4  0.4  0.4  

Parking 0.6  0.4  0.5  0.4  

Sponsorship 0.0  0.1  0.1  0.1  

Other Revenue 0.1  0.3  0.1  0.3  

     Total Direct Revenue 6.4  6.0  5.9  6.0  

Performers' Fees 3.2  3.1  2.6  3.1  

Outside Services 0.5  0.5  0.5  0.5  

Marketing/Related 0.2  0.2  0.2  0.2  

Supplies/Equipment/Rentals 0.6  0.5  0.5  0.5  

Payroll/Related 0.1  0.1  0.1  0.3  

Other Expense 0.2  0.2  0.3  0.2  

Total Direct Expense 4.8  4.7  4.2  4.9  

Contribution to Overhead and CapEx $1.6  $1.3  $1.7  $1.1  



  

 (9.0) 

 (8.0) 

 (7.0) 

 (6.0) 

 (5.0) 

 (4.0) 

 (3.0) 

 (2.0) 

 (1.0) 

 -    

 1.0  

Actual Budget PY Actual 

Support Services/Outreach 
September 2015 YTD Net Overhead 

Direct Revenue Direct Expense Net Overhead 



  Support Services/Outreach Business Unit 

Net Overhead Summary 

Year to Date as of September, 2015 

2015 2015 2014 2015 

Year to Date Year to Date Year to Date Full Year 

Actual Budget Actual Budget 

Interest $0.1  $0.1  $0.1  $0.1  

Facility Rentals $0.1  $0.1  $0.1  $0.1  

Other Revenue $0.2  $0.1  $0.2  $0.1  

     Total Revenue $0.4  $0.2  $0.3  $0.3  

Payroll/Related $4.8  $5.6  $4.5  $7.5  

Facility/Related $1.5  $1.5  $1.5  $1.9  

Supplies/Telephone/Postage $0.6  $0.5  $0.5  $0.6  

Outside Services $0.3  $0.3  $0.6  $0.4  

Insurance $0.3  $0.3  $0.3  $0.3  

Other Expense $0.2  $0.2  $0.2  $0.2  

Total Expense $7.6  $8.5  $7.6  $10.9  

Net Overhead ($7.2) ($8.3) ($7.3) ($10.7) 

Major Projects $0.2  $0.5  $0.1  $0.5  

Non-Cash Expenses: 

Depreciation Expense $1.8  $1.8  $2.2  $2.4  

   Total Non-Cash Expense $1.8  $1.8  $2.2  $2.4  



32nd D A A - OC Fair & Event Center
Balance Sheet (Unaudited)
September, 2015

2015 2014
Assets
Cash 3,963,712$    1,964,708$     
Investments 33,996,028   31,321,764    
Accounts Receivable 607,512        1,253,177      
Reserve for Bad Debt (11,850)         (29,614)          
Prepaid Assets -                -                 
Notes Receivable 290,053        -                 
Current Assets 38,845,455   34,510,034    

Deferred Expenses 111,043        100,783         
Capital Projects in Process 15,395,513   11,767,756    
Land 133,553        133,553         
Buildings and Improvements 31,312,918   33,153,961    
Equipment 318,737        134,358         
Long Term Assets 47,271,764   45,290,411    

Total Assets 86,117,219$  79,800,445$   

Liabilities
Accounts Payable 2,906,440$    2,157,738$     
Deferred Revenue 855,554        523,008         
Other Payroll Deductions 366,137        227,771         
Deposits 30,000          30,251           
Other Liabilities -                -                 
Short Term Liabilities 4,158,131     2,938,767      

Compensated Absence Liability 962,269        1,007,530      
Long Term Debt -                -                 
Long Term Liabilities 962,269        1,007,530      

Total Liabilities 5,120,400     3,946,298      

Resources
Investment in Capital Assets 47,160,721$  45,189,628$   
Net Resources - Designated Use 809,341        866,460         
Restricted Capital -                -                 
Net Resources Available for Operations 25,276,099   20,033,508    
Net Resources  - Auction Fund 20,981          26,459           

73,267,142   66,116,056    
Net Proceeds from Operations 7,729,677     9,738,092      
Total Resources 80,996,819   75,854,147    

Total Liabilities and Net Resources 86,117,219$  79,800,445$   



32nd D A A - OC Fair & Event Center
Income Statement (Unaudited)
Year to Date as of September, 2015

2015 Budget 2014 Full
Year to Date Year to Date Budget Budget Year to Date Year over Year Year over Year 2015

Amount Amount  $ Variance % Variance Amount $ Variance % Variance Budget

Revenues
Admissions to Grounds 9,673,420$        9,149,000$      524,420$         5.7% 10,020,329$    (346,909)$        -3.5% 9,149,000$      
Commercial Space Rental Revenue 1,498,395          1,444,000        54,395             3.8% 1,460,983        37,412             2.6% 1,444,000        
Carnival and Concessions Revenue 10,079,378        9,434,000        645,378           6.8% 10,431,431      (352,052)          -3.4% 9,434,000        
Exhibits Revenue 109,728             91,000             18,728             20.6% 100,300           9,428               9.4% 91,000             
Attractions Revenue 3,948,314          3,886,300        62,014             1.6% 3,394,305        554,008           16.3% 3,886,300        
Miscellaneous Revenue 5,206,022          4,774,000        432,022           9.0% 5,259,990        (53,968)            -1.0% 4,774,000        
Total OCFEC-Produced Event Revenue 30,515,257       28,778,300    1,736,957      6.0% 30,667,338      (152,080)        -0.5% 28,778,300    

Facility Rental Revenue 2,148,821          2,038,435        110,386           5.4% 2,590,837        (442,016)          -17.1% 2,771,534        
Other Event Revenue 3,489,911          2,858,300        631,611           22.1% 3,087,794        402,117           13.0% 3,432,700        
Equestrian Center Revenue 79,875               77,984             1,891               2.4% 77,984             1,892               2.4% 100,000           
Horse Show Revenue -                     -                   -                   N/A -                   -                   N/A -                   
Other Operating Revenue 115,550             90,165             25,385             28.2% 102,069           13,481             13.2% 109,415           
Total Rental Revenue 5,834,157         5,064,884      769,273         15.2% 5,858,684        (24,527)          -0.4% 6,413,649      

Interest Earnings 83,265               47,778             35,487             74.3% 47,778             35,487             74.3% 63,000             
Grants 6,472                 -                   6,472               N/A 79,530             (73,058)            -91.9% -                   
Revenue from Sale of Assets -                     -                   -                   N/A -                   -                   N/A -                   
Other Non-Operating Revenue 112,528             112,500           28                    0.0% 112,500           28                    0.0% 112,500           
Prior Year Revenue 333                    -                   333                  N/A -                   333                  N/A -                   
Total Non-Operating Revenue 202,598            160,278         42,320           26.4% 239,808          (37,210)          -15.5% 175,500         

Total Revenue 36,552,012$     34,003,462$   2,548,550$     7.5% 36,765,829$    (213,817)$       -0.6% 35,367,449$   

Expenses
Payroll and Related Expense 10,413,395$      11,197,121$    783,726$         7.0% 9,544,297$      (869,099)$        -9.1% 14,008,769$    
Professional Services Expense 2,556,026          2,538,754        (17,272)            -0.7% 2,645,103        89,077             3.4% 3,246,653        
Directors Expense 10,169               9,050               (1,119)              -12.4% 5,185               (4,984)              -96.1% 11,600             
Insurance Expense 305,985             297,850           (8,135)              -2.7% 286,771           (19,214)            -6.7% 297,850           
Telephone & Postage Expense 119,357             91,384             (27,973)            -30.6% 88,638             (30,720)            -34.7% 129,866           
Supplies and Equipment Expense 3,792,690          3,523,930        (268,760)          -7.6% 3,176,598        (616,092)          -19.4% 3,632,573        
Facility and Related Expense 2,928,419          2,878,330        (50,089)            -1.7% 2,749,885        (178,534)          -6.5% 3,352,915        
Publicity & Related Expense 1,628,148          1,584,689        (43,459)            -2.7% 1,611,811        (16,337)            -1.0% 1,664,665        
Attractions Expense 4,216,163          4,238,584        22,421             0.5% 3,779,020        (437,142)          -11.6% 4,238,584        
Other Self-Prod Event Expense 276,350             251,583           (24,767)            -9.8% 253,471           (22,880)            -9.0% 256,083           
Premium Expense 105,843             119,445           13,602             11.4% 115,474           9,630               8.3% 121,245           
Other Operating Expense 442,287             459,613           17,326             3.8% 404,505           (37,782)            -9.3% 515,410           
Total Operating Expense 26,794,834       27,190,333    395,499         1.5% 24,660,756      (2,134,077)     -8.7% 31,476,213    

Depreciation Expense 1,791,848          1,791,848        -                   0.0% 2,232,905        441,058           19.8% 2,389,130        
Major Projects 214,614             528,000           313,386           59.4% 88,041             (126,573)          -143.8% 528,000           
Carnival Funded Expenditures -                     -                   -                   N/A -                   -                   N/A -                   
Loss on Sale of Asset -                     -                   -                   N/A -                   -                   N/A -                   
Debt Service -                     -                   -                   N/A -                   -                   N/A -                   
Prior Year Expense 21,040               -                   (21,040)            N/A 46,035             24,996             N/A -                   
Total Non-Operating Expense 2,027,502         2,319,848      292,346         12.6% 2,366,981        339,480         14.3% 2,917,130      

Total Expense 28,822,335$     29,510,181$   687,845$        14.1% 27,027,738$    (1,794,597)$    5.7% 34,393,343$   

Net Proceeds 7,729,677$       4,493,281$     3,236,395$     72.0% 9,738,092$      (2,008,415)$    -20.6% 974,106$        

10/15/2015  3:55 PM



32nd DAA - OC Fair & Event Center

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: YTD 2015

Net Proceeds $7,729,677

Non-Cash Expenses:
   Depreciation Expense 1,791,848

Balance Sheet Activity:
   (Incr) Decr in Accounts Receivable 2,617
   (Incr) Decr in Notes Receivable (290,053)
   (Incr) Decr in Other Assets (92,244)
   Incr (Decr) in Accounts Payable 2,558,569
   Incr (Decr) in Other Accrued Liabilities 600,916
      Subtotal 2,779,805

      Net Cash Provided (Used) by
         Operating Activities 12,301,330

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

   (Incr) Decr in Buildings & Improvements 0
   (Incr) Decr in Equipment 0

   (Incr) Decr in Construction in Progress (3,160,921)

      Net Cash Provided (Used) by
         Investing Activities (3,160,921)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash $9,140,409

   Cash at Beginning of Year 28,819,331

Cash at End of Period $37,959,740

Statement of Cash Flows (Unaudited)
Year to Date - September 2015



Check No. Date Vendor Name Amount

77842 09/03/15 Amy Styffe 34.00                    

77843 09/03/15 Dan Rose 10.00                    

77844 09/03/15 Dee Tucker 10.00                    

77845 09/03/15 Diana Rogers 10.00                    

77846 09/03/15 Eric Anderson 10.00                    

77847 09/03/15 Gayle Hyatt 10.00                    

77848 09/03/15 James Spivey 10.00                    

77849 09/03/15 Jim Knowles 10.00                    

77850 09/03/15 Joe Cavanaugh 10.00                    

77851 09/03/15 Kay Carpenter 10.00                    

77852 09/03/15 Kimberly Algie 10.00                    

77853 09/03/15 Linda Whitman 10.00                    

77854 09/03/15 Linda Wilshire 10.00                    

77855 09/03/15 Paul McGirr 10.00                    

77856 09/03/15 Russell Simpson 10.00                    

77857 09/03/15 Steve Finley 10.00                    

77858 09/03/15 Critical Environments, Inc.  11,653.50             

77859 09/03/15 European Equine Associates 5,990.00               

77860 09/03/15 Association of State CA Supervisors 108.00                   

77861 09/03/15 Advanced Web Offset Inc. 49,950.00             

77862 09/03/15 A & H Refrigeration, Inc. 1,197.60               

77863 09/03/15 American Vintage Designs 413.72                   

77864 09/03/15 Andrea Duque 38.47                    

77865 09/03/15 AT&T 8,967.62               

77866 09/03/15 Betty Hart 17.26                    

77867 09/03/15 Boyd & Associates, Inc. 1,485.90               

77868 09/03/15 Brook Furniture Rental, Inc. 4,320.00               

77869 09/03/15 Bradley James Owen dba Brookdale Studio 400.00                   

77870 09/03/15 California Technology Agency 658.00                   

77871 09/03/15 California Fairs Financing Authority 11,905.42             

77872 09/03/15 Void ‐                        

77873 09/03/15 C.M.A. Growers, Inc. 1,107.00               

77874 09/03/15 CCS Orange County Janitorial, Inc. 1,153.40               

77875 09/03/15 Continental Chemical 3,862.62               

77876 09/03/15 CORT Business Services, Inc. 1,713.50               

77877 09/03/15 Extreme Reach Talent, Inc. 11,439.24             

77878 09/03/15 Fred's Custom Draperies 315.00                   

77879 09/03/15 International Speedway, Inc. 4,850.00               

77880 09/03/15 IUOE, Craft/Maint. Division 1,458.00               

77881 09/03/15 Kathy Kramer 65.92                    

77882 09/03/15 Laura McKinley 36.09                    

77883 09/03/15 Lopez Works, Inc. 23,762.81             

77884 09/03/15 Mobile Mini 189.00                   

77885 09/03/15 Mobile Modular Portable Storage 4,465.72               

77886 09/03/15 Modular Space Corporation / Modspace 623.16                   

OC Fair & Event Center 

Accounts Payable Checks Summary

September 2015

Page 1 of 16



Check No. Date Vendor Name Amount

OC Fair & Event Center 

Accounts Payable Checks Summary

September 2015

77887 09/03/15 Monica Esparza 500.00                   

77888 09/03/15 Mt. San Antonio Community College Dist 2,000.00               

77889 09/03/15 OC Weekly, LP 1,682.00               

77890 09/03/15 On Trend Apparel, Inc. 1,597.96               

77891 09/03/15 Pacific Clippings 118.00                   

77892 09/03/15 Pacific Carpet and Tile Cleaning  396.00                   

77893 09/03/15 Premiere Events Group 3,625.00               

77894 09/03/15 Premster Productions 27,264.34             

77895 09/03/15 Rachelle Weir 343.19                   

77896 09/03/15 Red Wing Hatchery 167.95                   

77897 09/03/15 Rick Valasek 100.00                   

77898 09/03/15 Ruby Lau 30.53                    

77899 09/03/15 Ryan Haag 1,785.00               

77900 09/03/15 Security Signal Devices, Inc. aka SSD 3,520.18               

77901 09/03/15 SEIU Local 1000 CA State Employees Asso. 1,946.34               

77902 09/03/15 Spectra  88.22                    

77903 09/03/15 State Disbursement Unit 394.37                   

77904 09/03/15 Steve Edwards 523.10                   

77905 09/03/15 The Gas Company 1,237.99               

77906 09/03/15 Tour Design Creative Services 590.00                   

77907 09/03/15 United Rentals (North America), Inc. 12,040.71             

77908 09/03/15 West Coast Aerial Photography, Inc.  1,250.00               

77909 09/03/15 Billy McKinley 675.00                   

77910 09/03/15 California Fair Services Authority 1,350.00               

77911 09/03/15 Modular Space Corporation / Modspace 1,165.85               

77912 09/03/15 Cart Mart, Inc. 49,797.60             

77913 09/09/15 3G Productions, Inc. 178,225.00           

77914 09/09/15 Action Golf Cart Rentals 3,962.03               

77915 09/09/15 Advanced Radar Technology, Inc.  1,162.50               

77916 09/09/15 A & H Refrigeration, Inc. 482.00                   

77917 09/09/15 Andy Gump Inc. 1,562.14               

77918 09/09/15 Aquatic Service, Inc. 90.00                    

77919 09/09/15 AT&T 97.45                    

77920 09/09/15 AT&T 1,607.34               

77921 09/09/15 Buzzfeed LTD 56,210.49             

77922 09/09/15 Carleton Christy 500.00                   

77923 09/09/15 California Fair Services Authority 1,320.00               

77924 09/09/15 Club Intrawest 250.00                   

77925 09/09/15 Continental Chemical 5,816.88               

77926 09/09/15 CORT Business Services, Inc. 4,634.18               

77927 09/09/15 Moor+South/Pier Managmt Co., LP (Tandem) 37,148.25             

77928 09/09/15 CR&R Inc. 290.00                   

77929 09/09/15 Eisel Enterprises, Inc. 734.40                   

77930 09/09/15 Void ‐                        

77931 09/09/15 Gold Coast Ecology 705.00                   

Page 2 of 16



Check No. Date Vendor Name Amount

OC Fair & Event Center 

Accounts Payable Checks Summary

September 2015

77932 09/09/15 Christine Gunst 95.93                    

77933 09/09/15 Haitbrink Asphalt Paving, Inc. 10,500.00             

77934 09/09/15 Jerry Liu & Associates 1,175.00               

77935 09/09/15 JT Engineering 3,150.00               

77936 09/09/15 Kaiser Permanente 38,868.60             

77937 09/09/15 Kimco StaffingServices,Inc. dba Advantex 6,079.80               

77938 09/09/15 KLOS Radio, Inc. 4,335.00               

77939 09/09/15 Josh Barnett Productions Inc/Lightasmic! 20,390.00             

77940 09/09/15 Lisa Sexton 6,996.75               

77941 09/09/15 Medical and Safety Management, Inc. 18,540.00             

77942 09/09/15 Millennial Media 15,440.33             

77943 09/09/15 Orange Coast College Foundation, Inc. 3,575.00               

77944 09/09/15 Mobile Modular Portable Storage 11,658.60             

77945 09/09/15 Gravity Technologies Inc. 349.00                   

77946 09/09/15 OC Fair & Event Center 68.00                    

77947 09/09/15 Orange County Register ‐ Advertising 15,592.50             

77948 09/09/15 Orange County Sheriff's Advisory Council 6,810.00               

77949 09/09/15 OC Weekly, LP 2,410.00               

77950 09/09/15 Orange FFA 3,650.00               

77951 09/09/15 Pam Highwart 31.54                    

77952 09/09/15 CA Public Employees Retirement System 47,131.56             

77953 09/09/15 Peter James Riojas 2,000.00               

77954 09/09/15 Pyro Engineering, Inc. 21,730.00             

77955 09/09/15 Ricoh Americas Corporation 200.17                   

77956 09/09/15 RK Diversified Entertainment, Inc. 331,580.66           

77957 09/09/15 Zano Productions (Ronald Canzano) 843.75                   

77958 09/09/15 Saddleback Veterinary Services, Inc. 2,589.30               

77959 09/09/15 SanGar Builders, Inc. 774.00                   

77960 09/09/15 Quijote Corporation dba Sensis 22,198.25             

77961 09/09/15 Southern California Edison 11,140.95             

77962 09/09/15 South Coast Air Quality 916.97                   

77963 09/09/15 Southern California Sound Image, Inc. 265,393.00           

77964 09/09/15 Spectra  5,674.36               

77965 09/09/15 Statewide Seating & Grandstands, Inc. 7,600.00               

77966 09/09/15 Tex*Us Guitar Shows, Inc 963.13                   

77967 09/09/15 Theresa Vargas (Urban Chickens) 1,200.00               

77968 09/09/15 Tour Design Creative Services 470.00                   

77969 09/09/15 Trench Plate Rental Company 1,358.00               

77970 09/09/15 United Rentals (North America), Inc. 19,113.70             

77971 09/09/15 William Kellogg 2,750.00               

77972 09/09/15 Xaxis US, LLC 25,423.02             

77973 09/09/15 Void ‐                        

77974 09/09/15 Void ‐                        

77975 09/09/15 XL Video, Inc. 375,476.95           

77976 09/10/15 C. Epting, Inc. (Chris Epting) 4,975.00               

Page 3 of 16



Check No. Date Vendor Name Amount

OC Fair & Event Center 

Accounts Payable Checks Summary

September 2015

77977 09/10/15 EventCorp Services, Inc. 26,040.00             

77978 09/11/15 Franchise Tax Board 107,785.78           

77979 09/11/15 Franchise Tax Board 287.50                   

77980 09/16/15 Cindy Dawson 10.00                    

77981 09/16/15 Eric Anderson 10.00                    

77982 09/16/15 Lori Benstead‐Frome 10.00                    

77983 09/16/15 Robert Andriacchi 10.00                    

77984 09/16/15 Sharon Dawson 10.00                    

77985 09/16/15 Tom Vasquez 10.00                    

77986 09/16/15 Vikki Rice 10.00                    

77987 09/16/15 CWF, Inc. dba A1 Event & Party Rental 128,859.25           

77988 09/16/15 Annie Senechal 29.00                    

77989 09/16/15 Aquatic Service, Inc. 295.00                   

77990 09/16/15 ASSI Security  850.00                   

77991 09/16/15 AT&T 74.68                    

77992 09/16/15 AT&T 2.56                      

77993 09/16/15 B & L Productions 71.30                    

77994 09/16/15 Butterflies 2 Go 50.00                    

77995 09/16/15 CCS Orange County Janitorial, Inc. 4,000.40               

77996 09/16/15 Moor+South/Pier Managmt Co., LP (Tandem) 6,502.89               

77997 09/16/15 Department of Forestry & Fire Protection 712.17                   

77998 09/16/15 Empire Branding Group 1,728.00               

77999 09/16/15 IRS ‐ ACS Support ‐ Stop 813G 3.66                      

78000 09/16/15 Kimco StaffingServices,Inc. dba Advantex 3,674.60               

78001 09/16/15 Michael Worthington 23.00                    

78002 09/16/15 Steve Miller 2,300.00               

78003 09/16/15 nQativ, LLC 1,100.00               

78004 09/16/15 Orange County Employees Association 460.00                   

78005 09/28/15 Void ‐                        

78006 09/16/15 One Touch Solutions  5,012.80               

78007 09/16/15 Pacific Clippings 67.50                    

78008 09/16/15 Pinnacle Landscape Company 4,457.00               

78009 09/16/15 Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc. 619.89                   

78010 09/16/15 Coulter Associates LLC 57,000.00             

78011 09/16/15 Red Wing Hatchery 37.55                    

78012 09/16/15 Southern California Edison 21,989.27             

78013 09/16/15 Spectra  60,712.23             

78014 09/16/15 State Disbursement Unit 331.00                   

78015 09/16/15 Steve Goedert 930.00                   

78016 09/16/15 The Wagon Store 50.00                    

78017 09/16/15 ThyssenKrupp Elevator Corporation 726.96                   

78018 09/16/15 Trench Plate Rental Company 5,177.60               

78019 09/16/15 United Site Services Of America 7,495.58               

78020 09/16/15 United Rentals (North America), Inc. 30,187.51             

78021 09/16/15 Verizon Wireless 1,790.03               

Page 4 of 16



Check No. Date Vendor Name Amount

OC Fair & Event Center 

Accounts Payable Checks Summary

September 2015

78022 09/16/15 CA Public Employees Retirement System 275.20                   

78023 09/16/15 American Express 12,584.08             

78024 09/24/15 CWF, Inc. dba A1 Event & Party Rental 51,613.80             

78025 09/24/15 Action Golf Cart Rentals 23,774.32             

78026 09/24/15 Alyssa Tyner 10.00                    

78027 09/24/15 AT&T 5,796.93               

78028 09/24/15 Beverly Thomas 10.00                    

78029 09/24/15 BurrellesLuce 285.82                   

78030 09/24/15 California Fairs Financing Authority 3,016.04               

78031 09/24/15 California Fair Services Authority 172,595.91           

78032 09/24/15 CCS Orange County Janitorial, Inc. 146,389.01           

78033 09/24/15 CORT Business Services, Inc. 2,354.12               

78034 09/24/15 Moor+South/Pier Managmt Co. (Tandem) 4,725.00               

78035 09/24/15 CR&R Inc. 43,195.78             

78036 09/24/15 CrowdTorch by Cvent 2,499.50               

78037 09/24/15 DeltaCare USA 664.04                   

78038 09/24/15 Delta Dental Plan Of California 4,479.57               

78039 09/24/15 Department of Justice 5,440.00               

78040 09/24/15 Gem Faire, Inc. 886.63                   

78041 09/24/15 Haitbrink Asphalt Paving, Inc. 2,900.00               

78042 09/24/15 Myers & Sons Hi‐Way Safety, Inc. 20,625.00             

78043 09/24/15 KABC ‐ TV 29,410.00             

78044 09/24/15 Kathy Kramer 330.57                   

78045 09/24/15 KCAL‐TV/CALIFORNIA 9 9,265.00               

78046 09/24/15 KCBS Television Studios 4,377.50               

78047 09/24/15 KMEX 36,550.00             

78048 09/24/15 KNBC‐TV 32,555.00             

78049 09/24/15 KTLA, Inc. 14,790.00             

78050 09/24/15 KTTV 11,985.00             

78051 09/24/15 KVEA Channel 52 25,500.00             

78052 09/24/15 Lisa Sexton 6,996.75               

78053 09/24/15 Lopez Works, Inc. 206,565.46           

78054 09/24/15 Medical and Safety Management, Inc. 1,040.00               

78055 09/24/15 Mesa Water District 12,290.00             

78056 09/24/15 Mobile Mini 378.00                   

78057 09/24/15 Mobile Modular Portable Storage 776.08                   

78058 09/24/15 Modular Space Corporation / Modspace 822.27                   

78059 09/24/15 Newport Mesa Unified School District 270.00                   

78060 09/24/15 Orange County Cruisin' Assoc 319.51                   

78061 09/24/15 Orange County Register ‐ Advertising 7,107.00               

78062 09/24/15 Orange County Wine Society, Inc. 2,004.50               

78063 09/24/15 Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc. 828.72                   

78064 09/24/15 Quantcast Corporation 7,214.42               

78065 09/24/15 Royal Restrooms of California, Inc. 19,464.00             

78066 09/24/15 Safeguard Health Plans 37.62                    

Page 5 of 16



Check No. Date Vendor Name Amount

OC Fair & Event Center 

Accounts Payable Checks Summary

September 2015

78067 09/24/15 Sand Sports Super Show 200,000.00           

78068 09/24/15 Sectran Security, Inc. 5,185.00               

78069 09/24/15 Southern California Edison 219,711.18           

78070 09/24/15 Statewide Seating & Grandstands, Inc. 1,560.00               

78071 09/24/15 TalentWise, Inc. 15.00                    

78072 09/24/15 Metro Network Communication, Inc. dba  80,956.50             

78073 09/24/15 Tour Design Creative Services 1,100.00               

78074 09/24/15 United Site Services Of America 7,445.00               

78075 09/24/15 United Rentals (North America), Inc. 5,280.18               

78076 09/28/15 OC Japan Fair 1,135.50               

78077 09/29/15 American Express 27,325.82             

78078 09/30/15 Amlon Industries, Inc. 2,138.40               

78079 09/30/15 AT&T 80.00                    

78080 09/30/15 Buzzfeed LTD 18,789.51             

78081 09/30/15 California Technology Agency 646.00                   

78082 09/30/15 CCS Orange County Janitorial, Inc. 6,278.00               

78083 09/30/15 Moor+South/Pier Managmt Co., LP (Tandem) 9,510.12               

78084 09/30/15 The Fly Guy 1,168.30               

78085 09/30/15 Christine Gunst 27.14                    

78086 09/30/15 IRS ‐ ACS Support ‐ Stop 813G 66.15                    

78087 09/30/15 Khavarian Enterprises, Inc. dba Vision C 1,260.00               

78088 09/30/15 Kimco StaffingServices,Inc. dba Advantex 2,067.20               

78089 09/30/15 Los Angeles Times 12,759.62             

78090 09/30/15 Long Beach Press Telegram 9,663.40               

78091 09/30/15 Medical and Safety Management, Inc. 180.00                   

78092 09/30/15 Michele A. Richards 112.12                   

78093 09/30/15 Millennial Media 4,559.71               

78094 09/30/15 Mobile Mini 2,887.92               

78095 09/30/15 Mobile Modular Portable Storage 922.86                   

78096 09/30/15 Orange County Treasurer‐Tax Collector 342.05                   

78097 09/30/15 Pacific Carpet and Tile Cleaning  1,325.44               

78098 09/30/15 Pitney Bowes Inc.  576.72                   

78099 09/30/15 Red Wing Hatchery 93.95                    

78100 09/30/15 Ricoh Americas Corporation 32.15                    

78101 09/30/15 Sound Media Fusion, LLC 8,250.00               

78102 09/30/15 Spectra  185.33                   

78103 09/30/15 State Disbursement Unit 447.71                   

78104 09/30/15 Xaxis US, LLC 12,687.80             

3,945,811.40Total September 2015 AP Checks

Page 6 of 16



Reference No. Date Vendor Name Amount

E09012015 09/01/15 Carnival Chargebacks ‐ 3185 80.00                    

E09012015 09/01/15 Payroll Tax ‐ Federal 4,160.98               

E09012015 09/01/15 Payroll Tax ‐ State 808.83                   

E09022015 09/02/15 Admissions Chargebacks ‐ 1087 140.00                   

E09022015 09/02/15 Authorize.net Gateway ‐ WiFi 29.95                    

E09022015 09/02/15 Authorize.net Gateway ‐ ESS 30.15                    

E09022015 09/02/15 Cart Mart, Inc. (540.72)                 

E09022015 09/02/15 Global Payments ESS ‐ 4284 23.20                    

E09022015 09/02/15 Global Payments Visual Arts ‐ 3277 20.95                    

E09022015 09/02/15 Global Payments WiFi ‐ 3304 23.85                    

E09022015 09/02/15 Payroll Tax ‐ Federal 55,757.07             

E09022015 09/02/15 Payroll Tax ‐ State 7,796.69               

E09022015 09/02/15 Signapay Accounting ‐ 0964 622.59                   

E09022015 09/02/15 Signapay Carnival ‐ 3185 60,923.52             

E09022015 09/02/15 Signapay JLA ‐ 6845 12.81                    

E09022015 09/02/15 Signapay PacAmp Merch ‐ 5003 1,931.40               

E09022015 09/02/15 Signapay PacAmp Sales ‐ 1608 12.95                    

E119454007 09/02/15 Ray Cammack Shows, Inc. 400,000.00           

E09032015 09/03/15 AMEX PacAmp Merch ‐ 0557 251.11                   

E09032015 09/03/15 CBB Exhibit Entries ‐ 8888 61.86                    

ER3342613586 09/03/15 Paypal, Inc. 59.95                    

E09042015 09/04/15 Carnival Chargebacks ‐ 3185 140.00                   

E09082015 09/08/15 AMEX Carnival ‐ 5085 6,716.97               

E09082015 09/08/15 AMEX Entries ‐ 8152 0.54                      

E09082015 09/08/15 AMEX TM ‐ 5809 2,483.92               

E09082015 09/08/15 Carnival Chargebacks ‐ 3185 140.00                   

E09082015 09/08/15 Payroll Tax ‐ Federal 17,940.39             

E09082015 09/08/15 Payroll Tax ‐ State 5,020.51               

E09092015 09/09/15 Payroll Tax ‐ Federal 65.34                    

E09092015 09/09/15 Payroll Tax ‐ State 4.94                      

E09092015 09/09/15 Signapay Carnival ‐ 3185 325.00                   

E09102015 09/10/15 Paymentech TM ‐ 6990 299.57                   

E49354582 09/10/15 Pitney Bowes Inc.  3,000.00               

E09142015 09/14/15 Admissions Chargebacks ‐ 1087 24.00                    

E09142015 09/14/15 Carnival Chargebacks ‐ 3185 135.00                   

E09142015 09/14/15 Paymentech TM ‐ 6990 11.42                    

E09142015 09/14/15 Payroll Tax ‐ Federal 35.26                    

E09152015 09/15/15 Paymentech TM ‐ 6990 10.20                    

E09152015 09/15/15 Payroll Tax ‐ State 13.12                    

E09162015 09/16/15 Paymentech TM ‐ 6990 13.36                    

E09162015 09/16/15 Payroll Tax ‐ Federal 59,502.48             

E09162015 09/16/15 Payroll Tax ‐ State 8,397.77               

E09182015 09/18/15 Payroll Tax ‐ Federal 2,222.83               

E09182015 09/18/15 Payroll Tax ‐ State 208.11                   

E09212015 09/21/15 Carnival Chargebacks ‐ 3185 120.00                   

OC Fair & Event Center

Electronic Payments Summary

September 2015

Page 7 of 16



Reference No. Date Vendor Name Amount

OC Fair & Event Center

Electronic Payments Summary

September 2015

E09212015 09/21/15 Payroll Tax ‐ Federal 4,470.94               

E09212015 09/21/15 Payroll Tax ‐ State 353.46                   

E09222015 09/22/15 CBB Analysis Statement Fee 15,477.50             

E09222015 09/22/15 Paymentech TM ‐ 6990 18.82                    

E14551705 09/22/15 CA Public Employees Retirement System 143,095.96           

E09232015 09/23/15 Paymentech TM ‐ 6990 3,302.28               

E09232015 09/23/15 Payroll Tax ‐ Federal 38.05                    

E09242015 09/24/15 Admissions Chargebacks ‐ 1087 62.50                    

E09242015 09/24/15 Payroll Tax ‐ Federal 30.12                    

E09242015 09/24/15 Payroll Tax ‐ State 3.81                      

E09282015 09/28/15 Global Payments WiFi ‐ 3304 15.00                    

E09282015 09/28/15 Payroll Tax ‐ Federal 131.52                   

E09282015 09/28/15 Payroll Tax ‐ State 10.89                    

E09282015 09/28/15 Paymentech TM ‐ 6990 27.96                    

Efbc4c47b5d 09/28/15 US Bank 92,015.55             

Total September 2015 Electronic Payments 898,092.23           

Page 8 of 16



Check No. Date Vendor Name Amount

35143 09/28/15 Void ‐                        

35144 09/01/15 Aaron Sivard 15.00                    

35145 09/01/15 Aidan Law 15.00                    

35146 09/01/15 Aimee Marquez 18.00                    

35147 09/01/15 Alejandra Viveros 18.00                    

35148 09/01/15 Alexander Dugan 54.00                    

35149 09/01/15 Alexander Solano 16.00                    

35150 09/01/15 Alexis Carvajal 15.00                    

35151 09/01/15 Alexis Maganzini 19.00                    

35152 09/01/15 Alexis Magdaleno 14.00                    

35153 09/01/15 Alexus Caudle 12.00                    

35154 09/01/15 Alice Allen 55.00                    

35155 09/01/15 Allen West Mesick 1,230.00               

35156 09/01/15 Allyssa Picasso 10.00                    

35157 09/01/15 Alma Hernandez 15.00                    

35158 09/01/15 Alyssa Armijo 20.00                    

35159 09/01/15 Alyssa Morgan 124.00                   

35160 09/01/15 Amber Clark 14.00                    

35161 09/01/15 Amber Kirk 40.00                    

35162 09/01/15 Amy Allinson 16.00                    

35163 09/01/15 Amy Fabrizio 15.00                    

35164 09/01/15 Andrea Diaz 50.00                    

35165 09/01/15 Andrew Marrujo 18.00                    

35166 09/01/15 Anna Clineff 10.00                    

35167 09/01/15 Anthony Burgett 2.00                      

35168 09/01/15 Arianna Myers 16.00                    

35169 09/01/15 Arianda Lopez‐Villegas 14.00                    

35170 09/01/15 Ashley Ward 28.00                    

35171 09/01/15 Ashlyn Hollerbach 40.00                    

35172 09/01/15 Aubrey Mills 15.00                    

35173 09/01/15 Audrey Walker 14.00                    

35174 09/01/15 Avery Beck 45.00                    

35175 09/01/15 Avie Horn 12.00                    

35176 09/01/15 Bailey Dewolf 96.00                    

35177 09/01/15 Bailey Hunter 6.00                      

35178 09/01/15 Barb Lutz 145.00                   

35179 09/01/15 Beatriz Aguiniga 11.00                    

35180 09/01/15 Berlena Reynolds 94.00                    

35181 09/01/15 Bob Scheibel 10.00                    

35182 09/01/15 Buena Park FFA 110.00                   

35183 09/01/15 Breanna Uyeno 19.00                    

35184 09/01/15 Brenda Diaz 148.00                   

35185 09/01/15 Brenden Stanfill 19.00                    

35186 09/01/15 Brett Muravez 11.00                    

35187 09/01/15 Brianna DiDomenico 11.00                    

OC Fair & Event Center 

Premium Checks Summary

September 2015

Page 9 of 16



Check No. Date Vendor Name Amount

OC Fair & Event Center 

Premium Checks Summary

September 2015

35188 09/01/15 Brianna Leday 15.00                    

35189 09/01/15 Brianne Shannon 152.00                   

35190 09/01/15 Brogan Stout 50.00                    

35191 09/01/15 Bryson Sara 8.00                      

35192 09/01/15 Cameron Stephen 12.00                    

35193 09/01/15 Carli Fawcett 10.00                    

35194 09/01/15 Carly Vinson 460.00                   

35195 09/01/15 Carol Mann 970.00                   

35196 09/01/15 Catherine Fernandes 450.00                   

35197 09/01/15 Catherine Reyes 11.00                    

35198 09/01/15 Charley Roberts 36.00                    

35199 09/01/15 Charlie Clark 13.00                    

35200 09/01/15 Chelsea Kissling 745.00                   

35201 09/01/15 Cheryl Rachal 140.00                   

35202 09/01/15 Chloe Paff 40.00                    

35203 09/01/15 Chris Cully 16.00                    

35204 09/01/15 Christian Campis 18.00                    

35205 09/01/15 Christopher Oh 20.00                    

35206 09/01/15 Corrine Sharp 1,185.00               

35207 09/01/15 Covina FFA 100.00                   

35208 09/01/15 Crystal McLaughlin 68.00                    

35209 09/01/15 Cydney Scolaro 11.00                    

35210 09/01/15 Danielle Chargois 16.00                    

35211 09/01/15 David Allen 630.00                   

35212 09/01/15 Deborah Soto‐Katz 600.00                   

35213 09/01/15 Debra Sandoval 55.00                    

35214 09/01/15 Diana Mendoza 17.00                    

35215 09/01/15 Dolly Booher 13.00                    

35216 09/01/15 Dominique Montes 30.00                    

35217 09/01/15 Donald Williams 570.00                   

35218 09/01/15 Dylan Mongan 18.00                    

35219 09/01/15 Edwin Madrid 12.00                    

35220 09/01/15 Elizabeth Rachal 495.00                   

35221 09/01/15 Elizabeth Rios 15.00                    

35222 09/01/15 Ellen Gregory 770.00                   

35223 09/01/15 Emily Gamboa 268.00                   

35224 09/01/15 Emily McNeil 15.00                    

35225 09/01/15 Emily Miramontes 17.00                    

35226 09/01/15 Emma Franceschi 39.00                    

35227 09/01/15 Erin Mongan 30.00                    

35228 09/01/15 Erin N. Perez 13.00                    

35229 09/01/15 Esmeralda Martinez 17.00                    

35230 09/01/15 Estrella Contreras 14.00                    

35231 09/01/15 Fullerton FFA 130.00                   

35232 09/01/15 Gabby Aguirre 14.00                    

Page 10 of 16



Check No. Date Vendor Name Amount

OC Fair & Event Center 

Premium Checks Summary

September 2015

35233 09/01/15 Gabriel Barry 13.00                    

35234 09/01/15 Gabriela Rounds 17.00                    

35235 09/01/15 Gabriella Castaneda 131.00                   

35236 09/01/15 Gian Pino 50.00                    

35237 09/01/15 Giselle Razo 12.00                    

35238 09/01/15 Glenn Heathman 62.00                    

35239 09/01/15 Grant Robb 65.00                    

35240 09/01/15 Griffyn Stout 95.00                    

35241 09/01/15 Guillermo Marquez 18.00                    

35242 09/01/15 Hamzah Yamani 12.00                    

35243 09/01/15 Hannah Kredel‐Speer 33.00                    

35244 09/01/15 Hayden Harkins 12.00                    

35245 09/01/15 Heather Hunt 20.00                    

35246 09/01/15 Isa Franceschi 54.00                    

35247 09/01/15 Isabel Barnett 15.00                    

35248 09/01/15 Isabella Carr 17.00                    

35249 09/01/15 Ivy Malone 30.00                    

35250 09/01/15 Jackson Walker 13.00                    

35251 09/01/15 Jaden Morgan 113.00                   

35252 09/01/15 James Rachal 425.00                   

35253 09/01/15 James Scharton 50.00                    

35254 09/01/15 Jamie Alexander 28.00                    

35255 09/01/15 Jamie Gutierrez 19.00                    

35256 09/01/15 Jeannette Mciver 465.00                   

35257 09/01/15 Jena Schuh 26.00                    

35258 09/01/15 Jena Williams 1,610.00               

35259 09/01/15 Jeneva Hawrylew 20.00                    

35260 09/01/15 Jenna Lew 16.00                    

35261 09/01/15 Jennifer Haase 80.00                    

35262 09/01/15 Jessica Allen 495.00                   

35263 09/01/15 Jessica Barnett 16.00                    

35264 09/01/15 Jessica Spencer 17.00                    

35265 09/01/15 Joanne Kissling 395.00                   

35266 09/01/15 Joe Lucero 150.00                   

35267 09/01/15 John Patrick Fernandes 770.00                   

35268 09/01/15 Jon Flores 13.00                    

35269 09/01/15 Jon Siaosigarcia 17.00                    

35270 09/01/15 Jordan Farnsworth 16.00                    

35271 09/01/15 Jordan Linss 40.00                    

35272 09/01/15 Jordan Ward 72.00                    

35273 09/01/15 Jordyn Rodriguez 22.00                    

35274 09/01/15 Julio Aranda 19.00                    

35275 09/01/15 Kamryn Haiber 18.00                    

35276 09/01/15 Kamryn Molinar 12.00                    

35277 09/01/15 Kate Whalen 695.00                   

Page 11 of 16



Check No. Date Vendor Name Amount

OC Fair & Event Center 

Premium Checks Summary

September 2015

35278 09/01/15 Katherine Rosenow 10.00                    

35279 09/01/15 Kathy Gomez 16.00                    

35280 09/01/15 Katie Beason 180.00                   

35281 09/01/15 Kayla Smith 15.00                    

35282 09/01/15 Kearson Siddell 17.00                    

35283 09/01/15 Keira Clineff 8.00                      

35284 09/01/15 Kelsey Ratelle 17.00                    

35285 09/01/15 Kiran Maqbool 80.00                    

35286 09/01/15 Kitty Beckmann 50.00                    

35287 09/01/15 Kristina Savage 135.00                   

35288 09/01/15 La Habra Hilltoppers 4‐H 60.00                    

35289 09/01/15 La Habra FFA 290.00                   

35290 09/01/15 Leonardo Picasso 16.00                    

35291 09/01/15 Leslie Altamirano 15.00                    

35292 09/01/15 Leslie Diaz 990.00                   

35293 09/01/15 Leslie Martinez 18.00                    

35294 09/01/15 Liam Aqui 18.00                    

35295 09/01/15 Lilliann Meek 13.00                    

35296 09/01/15 Lizzie Moore 34.00                    

35297 09/01/15 Logan Sara 20.00                    

35298 09/01/15 Loretta Cisneros 535.00                   

35299 09/01/15 Madeline McNeil 15.00                    

35300 09/01/15 Madi Fawcett 17.00                    

35301 09/01/15 Madison Cota 85.00                    

35302 09/01/15 Marcie Dewolf 10.00                    

35303 09/01/15 Marcus Wood 20.00                    

35304 09/01/15 Marie Romero 16.00                    

35305 09/01/15 Maryjane Midstokke 190.00                   

35306 09/01/15 Masen Karsten 19.00                    

35307 09/01/15 Matthew Corona 14.00                    

35308 09/01/15 Max Horan 15.00                    

35309 09/01/15 Mc Kenna Laban 20.00                    

35310 09/01/15 Megan Devries 15.00                    

35311 09/01/15 Megan Tye 28.00                    

35312 09/01/15 Micaela Yoon 20.00                    

35313 09/01/15 Michael Ostin 8.00                      

35314 09/01/15 Michael Parsons 32.00                    

35315 09/01/15 Michelle Chavez 18.00                    

35316 09/01/15 Mitchell Jensen 19.00                    

35317 09/01/15 Mollie Hernandez 12.00                    

35318 09/01/15 Morgan Ulrich 18.00                    

35319 09/01/15 Mission Viejo FFA 100.00                   

35320 09/01/15 Natalie Espinosa 13.00                    

35321 09/01/15 Natalie Quintanilla 29.00                    

35322 09/01/15 Natalie Rivas 19.00                    

Page 12 of 16



Check No. Date Vendor Name Amount

OC Fair & Event Center 

Premium Checks Summary

September 2015

35323 09/01/15 Nicholas Call 27.00                    

35324 09/01/15 Nicole Brockriede 55.00                    

35325 09/01/15 Nicole Midstokke 25.00                    

35326 09/01/15 Nicole Rosenow 8.00                      

35327 09/01/15 Orange Acres Backbreakers 4‐H 190.00                   

35328 09/01/15 Orange FFA 30.00                    

35329 09/01/15 Oscar Ledesma 37.00                    

35330 09/01/15 Peyton Pointer 50.00                    

35331 09/01/15 Void ‐                        

35332 09/01/15 Rashawn Shepperd 17.00                    

35333 09/01/15 Robert Kissling 450.00                   

35334 09/01/15 Robin Fraizer 50.00                    

35335 09/01/15 Rogelio Ortiz 14.00                    

35336 09/01/15 Ryan Jeltema 15.00                    

35337 09/01/15 Samantha Stewart 20.00                    

35338 09/01/15 Sandra Burgett 86.00                    

35339 09/01/15 Sandy VanEcho 845.00                   

35340 09/01/15 Sarah Boots 151.00                   

35341 09/01/15 Sarah Coker 154.00                   

35342 09/01/15 Sarah Halpin 50.00                    

35343 09/01/15 Sarah Hill 14.00                    

35344 09/01/15 Sarah Martin 219.00                   

35345 09/01/15 Sarah Milliken 20.00                    

35346 09/01/15 Sarah Mills 20.00                    

35347 09/01/15 Sarah Ramirez 16.00                    

35348 09/01/15 Sawyer Ragland 9.00                      

35349 09/01/15 Scott Miller 10.00                    

35350 09/01/15 Sebastian Perez 13.00                    

35351 09/01/15 Sebastian Soto 19.00                    

35352 09/01/15 Sergio Picasso 14.00                    

35353 09/01/15 Shannon Zintgraff 18.00                    

35354 09/01/15 Shelby Mills 10.00                    

35355 09/01/15 Shelby Ward 14.00                    

35356 09/01/15 Sierra Courtney 18.00                    

35357 09/01/15 Sierra Roberts 20.00                    

35358 09/01/15 Sonora FFA 200.00                   

35359 09/01/15 Shalina And Ronald Goyer 42.00                    

35360 09/01/15 Sumayyah Yamani 19.00                    

35361 09/01/15 Sunny Hills FFA 190.00                   

35362 09/01/15 Sydnee Ragland 27.00                    

35363 09/01/15 Sydney Mycroft 18.00                    

35364 09/01/15 Tasha Peterson 60.00                    

35365 09/01/15 Taylor Coker 134.00                   

35366 09/01/15 Taylor Eckenrod 36.00                    

35367 09/01/15 Taylor Mapes 30.00                    

Page 13 of 16



Check No. Date Vendor Name Amount

OC Fair & Event Center 

Premium Checks Summary

September 2015

35368 09/01/15 Tèa Rice 40.00                    

35369 09/01/15 Teresa Urbano 11.00                    

35370 09/01/15 Thomas Chisnall 130.00                   

35371 09/01/15 Tianna Weiland 45.00                    

35372 09/01/15 Tiffany Brooks 35.00                    

35373 09/01/15 Tim Diaz 440.00                   

35374 09/01/15 Toni Hammork 37.00                    

35375 09/01/15 Trabuco Trailblazers 170.00                   

35376 09/01/15 Troy Robb 95.00                    

35377 09/01/15 Tyler Kline 20.00                    

35378 09/01/15 Vickie Link 14.00                    

35379 09/01/15 Victor Sandoval 18.00                    

35380 09/01/15 Westminster High School/FFA 20.00                    

35381 09/01/15 William Gallegos 13.00                    

35382 09/01/15 Yorba Linda Cloverleaf 4‐H 240.00                   

35383 09/08/15 Randy Shumaker 862.50                   

35384 09/16/15 Ashley Tucker 250.00                   

35385 09/16/15 Dee Sheahan 20.00                    

35386 09/16/15 Derek Peters 10.00                    

35387 09/16/15 Donna Ogata 20.00                    

35388 09/16/15 Dorothy Birsic 70.00                    

35389 09/16/15 Emily Wickline 20.00                    

35390 09/16/15 Kathleen Castagnoli 100.00                   

35391 09/16/15 Kathy Muckenthaler 125.00                   

35392 09/16/15 Kristen Johnson 125.00                   

35393 09/16/15 Margarita Maxwell 60.00                    

35394 09/16/15 Maritza Nighswonger 20.00                    

35395 09/16/15 Mary Lee Gair 50.00                    

35396 09/16/15 Niloofar Parvas 275.00                   

35397 09/16/15 Pat Johnson 75.00                    

35398 09/16/15 Patty Turrell 20.00                    

35399 09/16/15 Shadi Tehrani 40.00                    

35400 09/16/15 Stephanie Beck 100.00                   

35401 09/16/15 Void ‐                        

35402 09/16/15 Nichole Wheeler 10.00                    

35403 09/22/15 Audrey Kayser 85.00                    

35404 09/28/15 Aaron Fernandes 225.00                   

27,938.50             Total September 2015 Premium Checks

Page 14 of 16



 

Communications Department  •  OC Fair & Event Center  •  32nd District Agricultural Association 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626  • (714) 708-1543 • ocfair.com 

 
   
  
 

OC Fair & Event Center October 2015 Events Calendar Features  
Latin Cultural Festival, Cake Expo and Fight Club OC 

 
Costa Mesa, Calif. (October 2015) – The OC Fair & Event Center is home to a variety of events 
throughout the year. Here is the current October 2015 events calendar: 
 
October 2015 at the OC Fair & Event Center 

1-3 Sugar Plum Arts & Crafts Festivals 
Sugar Plum welcomes the holiday season with gifts to warm the heart and 
accessories that make a home. Shoppers can find quality hand-crafted merchandise 
made in the U.S. from more than 120 vendors plus antiques and collectibles. 
Strollers are not allowed in the building on Thursday, Oct. 1, but are welcome Friday 
and Saturday, Oct. 2-3. 
Hours: Thursday-Friday 10 a.m.-8 p.m., Saturday 9 a.m.-5 p.m. 
Admission: Free 
Parking: $7 
Information: sugarplumfestivals.com, plumcrazy [at] sugarplumcrafts [dot] com, 
(562) 598-0857 

  
3-4 The 38th Annual Fall OC Home & Garden Show 

Two-day show featuring everything in home improvement and decorating. 
Hours: Saturday 10:00 a.m.-7 p.m., Sunday 10 a.m.-5 p.m. 
Admission: General $6, Senior (60+) $4 (Children 11 & younger are free) 
Information: thebesthomeshow.com, (800) 571-9012, (801) 571-9012, 
sylvia.ultimateevents [at] gmail [dot] com 

  
10-11 Reef-A-Palooza  

Two-day indoor marketplace for marine aquarium vendors, exhibitors and hobbyists 
to buy, sell, trade and showcase their products and collections. 
Hours: Saturday 10 a.m.-6 p.m., Sunday 10 a.m.-4 p.m. 
Admission: General $15, Seniors (60+) $10 (Children 12 & younger are free) 
Parking: $7 
Information: reefapaloozashow.org 

  

http://www.ocfair.com/
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/ViewEvent.asp?EventId=3671
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/ViewEvent.asp?EventId=3666
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/calendar.asp?idCat=41&submit=Go


 

Communications Department  •  OC Fair & Event Center  •  32nd District Agricultural Association 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626  • (714) 708-1543 • ocfair.com 

15 Fight Club OC 
An innovative, bi-monthly series featuring boxing and mixed martial arts competitive 
fights with ringside luxury suites, VIP perks for season ticket holders and a happy 
hour bar and grill for all attendees. 
Hours: Thursday 7:30-9:30 p.m. (Join us for Happy Hour specials before the action 
5:30-6:30 p.m.) 
Admission: $50-$100 
Information: fightcluboc.com, (949) 760-3131 

  
16-18 Gem Faire 

Shop for fine jewelry, gems, beads, minerals, crystals, findings and more at 
manufacturer's prices. Plus, find nearly 200 exhibitors from around the world, 
classes, demonstrations, jewelry repair, ring sizing and free hourly door prizes. 
Hours: Friday Noon-6 p.m., Saturday 10 a.m.-6 p.m., Sunday 10 a.m.-5 p.m. 
Admission: $7 weekend pass (Children 11 & younger are free) 
Information: gemfaire.com, (503) 252-8300, info [at] gemfaire [dot] com 

  
17 PHCC - Trade Connect Expo 2015 

One-day tradeshow for members of the plumbing, heating & cooling industry for the 
purpose of updating contractors and technicians on the latest technology and tools. 
Free educational seminars, hands-on training and tool deals are offered. 
Hours: Saturday 9 a.m.-3 p.m. 
Admission: $10 (Limited to members of the plumbing, heating and cooling industry 
only.) 
Information: phcc.com, (714) 896-0153, jodi [at] phcc [dot] com 

  
17-18 The Cake & Party Expo  

This two-day event is for those passionate about baking, creating, cake decorating 
and entertaining with celebrity demos, classes and hands-on workshops. 
Hours: Saturday-Sunday 9 a.m.-6 p.m. 
Admission (One-Day/Two-Day): General $45/$55, Child (9-12) $20/$30 (Children 8 
& younger are free) 
Information: cake-expo.com, hello [at] cake [dot] com 

  
24-25 LFestival: Feria Cultural LatinoAmericana  

Music, food and arts festival celebrating the variety of Latin American cultures. 
Hours: Saturday Noon-10 p.m., Sunday Noon-9 p.m. 
Admission (One-Day/Two-Day): General $80/$129, Child $40/$65, VIP $160/$259 
(Children 6 & younger are free with paying adult. Limit one free child per adult.)  
Information: LFestival.com, (800) 797-0435, info [at] lfestival [dot] com 

  
Other October Events at the OC Fair & Event Center: NMUSD College AND Career Night 
(Oct. 21, open to NMUSD students only), CFA Cat Show (Oct. 31–Nov. 1) 
  

 This is a family-friendly event. Click on the icon for a full list of upcoming events for children 
and families. 
 
October 2015 Weekly Events 
 

Centennial Farm  

http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/ViewEvent.asp?EventId=3643
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/ViewEvent.asp?EventId=3417
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/ViewEvent.asp?EventId=3667
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/ViewEvent.asp?EventId=3641
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/ViewEvent.asp?EventId=3646
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/ViewEvent.asp?EventId=3504
http://www.ocfair.com/ocf2/community_programs/CentennialFarm.aspx
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/calendar.asp?idCat=41&submit=Go
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/calendar.asp?idCat=41&submit=Go
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/calendar.asp?idCat=41&submit=Go


 

Communications Department  •  OC Fair & Event Center  •  32nd District Agricultural Association 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626  • (714) 708-1543 • ocfair.com 

Three-acre working farm designed to educate youth and their families about agriculture 
and its importance to daily life with fruit and vegetable gardens, livestock and the 
Millennium Barn. 
Hours: Monday-Friday 1-4 p.m., Saturday-Sunday 9 a.m.-4 p.m. 
Admission: Free (During all-grounds events, admission may be required. Check 
ocfair.com for more information.) 
Information: OC Fair & Event Center, ocfair.com or (714) 708-1916 

 
Food Truck Fare – Wednesday (After Dark) & Thursday (Lunch)  
Enjoy a gourmet food truck meal twice a week at the OC Fair & Event Center. Wednesday 
features tasty dinner options with entertainment and a cash bar while Thursday features 
lunchtime options from a variety of food trucks. Held near the Pacific Amphitheatre Box 
Office, enter at Gate 1 off Fair Drive. 
Hours: Wednesday 5:30-9 p.m., Thursday 11 a.m.-2 p.m. 
Admission and Parking: Free (Food prices vary per truck) 
Information & Weekly Offerings: ocfair.com, Twitter.com/ocfair, Facebook.com/ocfair 
 
Farmers Market  
Find the freshest fruit, vegetables, nuts and more at this weekly California-certified market. 
Hours: Thursday 9 a.m.-1 p.m. 
Admission and Parking: Free 
Information: Orange County Farm Bureau, orange.cfbf.com or (714) 573-0374 
 
Orange County Market Place  
A unique weekend swap meet celebrating food, fun, value and the entrepreneurial spirit. 
Hours: Saturday and Sunday 7 a.m.-4 p.m. 
Admission: General $2 (Children 11 and younger are free) Parking: Free 
Information: Tel Phil Enterprises, ocmarketplace.com or (949) 723-6660 

 
 
Mark Your Calendar: November & December 2015 Events 
 

Nov. 6-8 The Christmas Company 
Nov. 11 Veterans + Labor Community Celebration 
Nov. 12-14 Sugar Plum Arts & Crafts Festivals 
Nov. 14-15 Repticon 
Nov. 28-29 Crossroads of the West Gun Show 
Dec. 2-4 Southern California Property Maintenance Expo (Industry Only) 
Dec. 3 Fight Club OC 
Dec. 5-6 Shoreline Dog Show 
Dec. 6-7 Malibu Kennel Club 
Dec. 11-13 Gem Faire 

 
For additional information on any show, please contact the promoter listed in the event’s 
information. General parking for most events is $7. Scheduled events are subject to change without 
notice. Visit ocfair.com for event updates. 
 
The OC Fair & Event Center is located off the 405 and 55 freeways at 88 Fair Drive in Costa 
Mesa. For more information, please visit ocfair.com, become a fan on Facebook.com/OCFair, 
follow us at Twitter.com/ocfair or call (714) 708-1500. 
 

http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/Calendar.asp?View=SEARCH&SQLSearchString=food+truck
http://www.ocfair.com/
http://twitter.com/ocfair
http://www.facebook.com/ocfair
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/Calendar.asp?View=SEARCH&SQLSearchString=farmers
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/Calendar.asp?View=SEARCH&SQLSearchString=market+place
http://www.ocfair.com/
http://www.facebook.com/OCFair
http://www.twitter.com/ocfair
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/calendar.asp?idCat=41&submit=Go
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/calendar.asp?idCat=41&submit=Go
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/calendar.asp?idCat=41&submit=Go


 

Communications Department  •  OC Fair & Event Center  •  32nd District Agricultural Association 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626  • (714) 708-1543 • ocfair.com 

 
   
 
 

OC Fair & Event Center November 2015 Events Calendar Features  
Cirque du Soleil’s KURIOS plus Veterans Day Event,  

Christmas Company and Garden Class 
 

Costa Mesa, Calif. (November 2015) – The OC Fair & Event Center is home to a variety of 
events throughout the year. Cirque du Soleil has returned with its latest production KURIOS – 
Cabinet of Curiosities with daily shows Tuesday-Sunday through November 29. Here are the 
details on this new event and other November events: 
 
November 2015 at the OC Fair & Event Center 

Through 
Nov. 29 

KURIOS – Cabinet of Curiosities – Cirque du Soleil  
KURIOS – Cabinet of Curiosities™ premiered to the world in Montréal in April 2014 
and is Cirque du Soleil’s 35th production. Written and directed by Michel Laprise, 
KURIOS is a tale in which time comes to a complete stop, transporting the audience 
inside a fantasy world where everything is possible. 
Hours: Tuesday-Friday* 8 p.m., Saturday* 4:30 p.m., 8 p.m., Sunday 1:30 p.m., 5 
p.m. (*see website for detailed schedule) 
Admission: $50-$165 (Prices vary per show time.) 
Information: Cirque du Soleil Box Office (877) 924-7783, cirquedusoleil.com 

  
Oct. 31-
Nov. 1 

CFA All-Breed Cat Show  
This 48th annual event features pedigreed cats of all breeds competing for "Best In 
Show" plus a household pet competition, feline rescue groups with cats available for 
adoption, specialty vendors offering T-shirts to custom jewelry to specialty foods and 
cat trees. 
Hours: Saturday 10 a.m.-6 p.m., Sunday 10 am.-5 p.m. 
Admission: General $10, Senior (55+) $7, Child (7-12) $7, Military with ID $7, 
Families $25 (up to 3 adults & 4 children 7-12 years old) (Children 6 & younger are 
free) 
Information: santamonicacats.com, lisa [at] kuta [dot] net 

  
6-8 The Christmas Company 

This fantastic holiday shopping extravaganza features over 80 unique specialty 
vendors from locations throughout the U.S. and is perfect for the discriminating 
holiday shopper. Special events are also scheduled daily. 
Hours: Friday 2-7 p.m., Saturday 10 a.m.-8 p.m., Sunday 10 a.m.-5 p.m. 
Admission: $10 
Information: shoptcc.com, thechristmascompany [at] jlocc [dot] org, 
(949) 261-0823 

  

http://www.ocfair.com/
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/ViewEvent.asp?EventId=3693
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/ViewEvent.asp?EventId=3695
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/ViewEvent.asp?EventId=3622
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/calendar.asp?idCat=41&submit=Go
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/calendar.asp?idCat=41&submit=Go


 

Communications Department  •  OC Fair & Event Center  •  32nd District Agricultural Association 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626  • (714) 708-1543 • ocfair.com 

7 Centennial Farm Garden Class - Pruning Fruit Trees - The Basics 
Learn the best time to prune stone fruit trees, citrus trees and avocado trees in 
Southern California. Isabel Barkman will cover the basics of pruning and why the 
pruning season in Southern California is different than the rest of the country and will 
also prepare attendees for the Pruning Workshop in late January. 
Hours: Saturday 9:30 a.m. (Classes last 1.5-2 hours unless otherwise specified.) 
Admission: $5 (Reservation deadline: Thurs., Nov. 5) 
Information: ocfair.com/gardenclasses, CFGardenClass [at] ocfair [dot] com, 
(714) 708-1619 

  
7 StyleCon - Where Beauty Meets Fashion Expo 

One-day beauty and fashion multi-platform experience for millennial social 
influencers, media and fans.  Attendees can engage with leading brands and attend 
style panels, fashion presentations and meet & greets with favorite Instagrammers, 
bloggers and YouTubers. 
Hours: 10 a.m.-4 p.m. 
Admission: $29 
Information: stylecon.com, (949) 500-4818, info [at] stylecon [dot] com 

  
11 Veterans + Labor Community Celebration  

Free community celebration with live music, care package collection drive and food 
drive for veterans, children and adult "Thank You" art projects, historic military 
vehicles on display, free hot dogs and veteran organizations connecting veterans to 
jobs and other programs. 
Hours: Wednesday 10 a.m.-3 p.m. 
Admission: Free 
Information: veteransandlabor.com, veteransandlabor [at] gmail [dot] com 

  
12-14 
 

Sugar Plum Arts & Crafts Festivals – Holiday Festival 
Sugar Plum welcomes the holiday season with gifts to warm the heart and 
accessories that make a home. Shoppers can find quality hand-crafted merchandise 
made in the U.S. from more than 120 vendors plus antiques and collectibles. 
Strollers are not allowed in the building on Thursday, Nov. 12, but are welcome 
Friday and Saturday, Nov. 13-14. 
Hours: Thursday-Friday 10 a.m.-8 p.m., Saturday 9 a.m.-5 p.m. 
Admission: Free 
Information: sugarplumfestivals.com, (562) 596-0857, 
PlumCrazy [at] SugarPlumCrafts [dot] com 

  
12-14 Repticon  

Repticon is a reptile event featuring vendors offering reptile pets, supplies, feeders, 
cages and merchandise. It includes live animal seminars and frequent raffles for 
coveted prizes and is an exciting, educational and family-oriented for everyone.  
Hours: Saturday 10 a.m.-5 p.m., Sunday 10 a.m.-4 p.m. 
Admission: General/Adult $12, Children (5-12) $5 
Information: repticon.com 

  

http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/ViewEvent.asp?EventId=3697
http://www.ocfair.com/gardenclasses
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/ViewEvent.asp?EventId=3698
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/ViewEvent.asp?EventId=3665
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/ViewEvent.asp?EventId=3672
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/calendar.asp?idCat=41&submit=Go
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/calendar.asp?idCat=41&submit=Go


 

Communications Department  •  OC Fair & Event Center  •  32nd District Agricultural Association 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626  • (714) 708-1543 • ocfair.com 

21-22 Southern California Indian Center’s 47th Annual Pow Wow  
Enjoy American Indian dancing, singing, cultural arts and crafts, as well as American 
Indian food. Event is open to the public to learn about various American Indian 
cultures.  
Hours:  Saturday 10 a.m.-10 p.m., Sunday 10 a.m.-5 p.m. 
Admission: General/Adult $5, Senior/Teen $3 
Information: indiancenter.org/scic-events.html 

  
28-29 Crossroads of the West Gun Show 

Two-day gun and western Americana show. 
Hours: Saturday 9 a.m.-5 p.m., Sunday 9 a.m.-4 p.m. 
Admission: $16 (Children 12 & younger are free when accompanied by a parent or 
guardian) 
Information: crossroadsgunshows.com, (801) 544-9125, 
gunshows [at] crossroadsgunshows [dot] com 

  
Nov. 29-  
Dec. 16 

Magic Trees Christmas Tree Lot 
Find your holiday centerpiece at this large display of Noble Fir and Douglas Fir 
Christmas trees for sale. Flocking and wreaths are also available. 
Hours: Daily 9 a.m.-9 p.m. 
Admission & Parking: Free (Prices for trees, flocking service & wreaths will vary) 
Information: Facebook.com/MagicTreesOC, magictrees.ocfair [at] gmail [dot] com, 
(818) 730-9074 

  
 This is a family-friendly event. Click on the icon for a full list of upcoming events for children 

and families. 
 
November 2015 Weekly Events 

 
Centennial Farm  
Three-acre working farm designed to educate youth and their families about agriculture 
and its importance to daily life with fruit and vegetable gardens, livestock and the 
Millennium Barn. 
Hours: Monday-Friday 1-4 p.m., Saturday-Sunday 9 a.m.-4 p.m. 
Closed Nov. 11, 26-27 
Admission: Free (During all-grounds events, admission may be required. Check 
ocfair.com for more information.) 
Information: OC Fair & Event Center, ocfair.com or (714) 708-1916 

 
Food Truck Fare – Wednesday (After Dark) & Thursday (Lunch)  
Enjoy a gourmet food truck meal twice a week at the OC Fair & Event Center. Wednesday 
features tasty dinner options with entertainment and a cash bar while Thursday features 
lunchtime options from a variety of food trucks. Held near the Pacific Amphitheatre Box 
Office, enter at Gate 1 off Fair Drive. 
Hours: Wednesday 5:30-9 p.m., Thursday 11 a.m.-2 p.m. 
Closed Nov. 11, 25-26 
Admission and Parking: Free (Food prices vary per truck) 
Information & Weekly Offerings: ocfair.com, Twitter.com/ocfair, Facebook.com/ocfair 
 
Farmers Market  

http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/ViewEvent.asp?EventId=3385
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/ViewEvent.asp?EventId=3705
http://www.ocfair.com/ocf2/community_programs/CentennialFarm.aspx
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/Calendar.asp?View=SEARCH&SQLSearchString=food+truck
http://www.ocfair.com/
http://twitter.com/ocfair
http://www.facebook.com/ocfair
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/Calendar.asp?View=SEARCH&SQLSearchString=farmers
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/calendar.asp?idCat=41&submit=Go
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/calendar.asp?idCat=41&submit=Go
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/calendar.asp?idCat=41&submit=Go
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/calendar.asp?idCat=41&submit=Go
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/calendar.asp?idCat=41&submit=Go


 

Communications Department  •  OC Fair & Event Center  •  32nd District Agricultural Association 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626  • (714) 708-1543 • ocfair.com 

Find the freshest fruit, vegetables, nuts and more at this weekly California-certified market. 
Hours: Thursday 9 a.m.-1 p.m. 
Closed Nov. 26 
Admission and Parking: Free 
Information: Orange County Farm Bureau, orange.cfbf.com or (714) 573-0374 
 
Orange County Market Place  
A unique weekend swap meet celebrating food, fun, value and the entrepreneurial spirit. 
Hours: Saturday and Sunday 7 a.m.-4 p.m. 
Admission: General $2 (Children 11 and younger are free) Parking: Free 
Information: Tel Phil Enterprises, ocmarketplace.com or (949) 723-6660 

 
 
Mark Your Calendar: December 2015 Events 
 

3-4 Southern California Property Maintenance Expo (Industry Only) 
3 Fight Club OC 
4-5 Shoreline Dog Fanciers Association Holiday Classic 

5 Centennial Farm Garden Class - “Make It & Take it Wreaths” 
5-6 Big Bite Sugar Rush 
6-7 Malibu Kennel Club 
11-13 Gem Faire 
18-31 Winter Fest 

 
 
 
For additional information on any show, please contact the promoter listed in the event’s 
information. General parking for most events is $7. Scheduled events are subject to change without 
notice. Visit ocfair.com for event updates. 
 
The OC Fair & Event Center is located off the 405 and 55 freeways at 88 Fair Drive in Costa 
Mesa. For more information, please visit ocfair.com, become a fan on Facebook.com/OCFair, 
follow us at Twitter.com/ocfair or call (714) 708-1500. 
 

http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/Calendar.asp?View=SEARCH&SQLSearchString=market+place
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/ViewEvent.asp?EventId=3701
http://www.ocfair.com/
http://www.facebook.com/OCFair
http://www.twitter.com/ocfair
http://ns.ocfair.com/ocf2/Calendar/calendar.asp?idCat=41&submit=Go


MINUTES OF OCFEC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
HELD SEPTEMBER 24, 2015 

 
1.  CALL TO ORDER: 

Chair Aitken called the meeting to order at 9:03 a.m. 
 
2. MISSION STATEMENT 
  
3.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by Director Berardino. Roll call taken 
by Jessica Zimmerman. 
 

4.  DIRECTORS PRESENT: 
Chair Aitken, Vice Chair Mouet, Director Tkaczyk, Director La Belle, 
Director Berardino, Director Bagneris, Director Cervantes, and Director 
Ruiz 
 
DIRECTORS ABSENT/EXCUSED: 
Director Nguyen  
 
OTHERS PRESENT: 
Kathy Kramer, OCFEC CEO; Michele Richards, OCFEC VP Business 
Development Officer; Debbye McDaniel, OCFEC VP Operations & 
Administration; Jeff Willson, OCFEC; Jessica Zimmerman, OCFEC; Elaine 
Kumamoto, OCFEC Director of Finance; Joan Hamill, OCFEC Director of 
Community Relations; Jerry Eldridge, OCFEC Director of Facilities; 
Howard Sandler, OCFEC Director of Events; Jason Jacobsen, OCFEC 
Director of Planning and Presentation; Nick Buffa, OCFEC Safety & 
Security Supervisor; Deborah Fletcher, Office of the Attorney General; 
Roger Grable, Manatt, Phelps & Phillips, LLP; Janet Taylor, stenographer; 
Bill Clark, IATSE; Ann Kastil, RCS; Mike Robbins; Jeanine Robbins; 
Richard Skoczylas, OCWS; Theresa Sears; Curt Jacey, Tandem; Tamara 
Goddard, Tandem; Robin Wachner, OCFEC Director of Communications; 
Dan Gaines, OCFEC Director of Entertainment; Ruby Lau, OCFEC 
Director of Marketing  
 

5. CEO’S OPERATIONAL UPDATE 
 

Kathy Kramer, OCFEC CEO, introduced Debbye McDaniel, OCFEC 
Interim Vice President, Finance & Administration. She noted that they will 
be conducting final interviews for the Vice President of Operations 
position.  
 
Kramer then announced that a Post Fair Community Fair Focus Group 
meeting has been scheduled for October.  
 
Michele Richards, OCFEC Vice President, Business Development, 
introduced a recap of the 2015 OC Fair noting a slight decrease in overall 
attendance. She then discussed the success of the gate promotions as 
well as revenue numbers. 
 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
September 24, 2015, PAGE 2 OF 9 

 

 

 

 
Ruby Lau, OCFEC Director of Communications, discussed 2015 gate 
promotions and patron survey results. 
 
Dan Gaines, OCFEC Director of Entertainment, discussed the success of 
the 2015 OC Brew Hee Haw over 2014. He then presented sales figures 
for the Action Sports Arena, The Hangar and Pacific Amphitheatre.  
 
Howard Sandler, OCFEC Director of Events, recapped the 2015 
Concessions and Commercial exhibitor program. 
 
Tamara Goddard, Tandem, spoke about the corporate sponsorship 
program, mobile marketing tours, experiential marketing, the Platinum 
Partner program and group ticket sales. 
 
Richards then discussed the competitive exhibits program, the Junior 
Livestock Auction, and the feature exhibit program. 
 
Robin Wachner, OCFEC Director of Communications, spoke about media 
outreach for the 2015 OC Fair, social media, and the OC Fair app. She 
then played a recap of broadcast media.  
 
Jason Jacobsen, OCFEC Director of Planning and Presentation, 
discussed technology and production efforts that goes into setting up the 
Fair. He also spoke about the sound monitoring teams deployed to the 
adjacent neighborhoods.  
 
Richards then spoke about the popularity and success of the 
Neighborhood Ambassador program. 
 
Gary Hardesty, Sound Media Fusion, spoke about sound mitigation efforts 
during the Fair and the sound monitoring teams. He noted that he was 
looking forward to further improvements to sound mitigation for 2016. 
 
Jerry Eldridge, OCFEC Director of Facilities, spoke about the Maintenance 
team and all their work during the Fair.  
 
Richards then concluded by speaking about the OC Fair Fun Run, the 
Cattle Drive, and the hosting of the Rott family. 
 
Director Berardino complimented staff on the presentation. 
 
Director Bagneris thanked staff for their efforts. 
 
Director La Belle complimented the presentation and asked if gross 
revenues were down in conjunction with the decrease in attendance. 
 
Richards answered that gross revenues were down approximately 1.5 
percent.  She then commented that in addition to the success of the Fair, 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
September 24, 2015, PAGE 3 OF 9 

 

 

 

the year round events program contributes to the success of the property. 
Chair Aitken requested a list of upcoming events at OCFEC. 
 
Director Cervantes stated that the Hispanic community is very excited 
about events happening at OCFEC, especially the L Festival 
 
Vice Chair Mouet complimented the presentation and thanked staff, 
commenting upon the quality teamwork. 
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Reggie Mundekis spoke about the 2012 Pacific Amphitheatre Settlement 
and the implementation of settlement terms during the 2015 OC Fair.   
 
Beth Refakes congratulated the Board and staff on a great Fair. She then 
asked about efforts to repeal ABX4 22. 
 
Director Berardino stated that the Board should have responded quicker 
but was working towards the repeal of that legislation. 
 
Chair Aitken asked that staff work with the Legislative Monitoring 
Committee to provide a report at the October meeting about efforts to 
repeal the legislation.  
 
Director Bagneris noted that OCFEC, with the decision to hire a legislative 
advocate, is headed in the right direction towards repealing the legislation.  
 
Bobby McDonald from the Black Chamber of Commerce of Orange 
County spoke about the Chamber’s annual banquet where the OCFEC 
Board of Directors was honored for their efforts in creating Heroes Hall 
and honoring veterans. 
 
Director Berardino and Director La Belle presented a certificate of 
appreciation to Bob Palazzola, Doug Bennett, and Bobby McDonald for 
their efforts as part of the Heroes Hall advisory committee.  
 

7. MINUTES: 
 

A.  Board Meeting held August 27, 2015 
 Action Item 
 

ACTION: Director Cervantes motioned and Director Berardino 
seconded to review and approve the minutes from the Board meeting 
held August 27, 2015. MOTION CARRIED. AYES: Chair Aitken, Vice 
Chair Mouet, Director La Belle, Director Tkaczyk, Director 
Berardino, Director Bagneris, and Director Cervantes. NAYES: 
none. ABSTENTION: Director Ruiz 
 

 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
September 24, 2015, PAGE 4 OF 9 

 

 

 

8.  CONSENT CALENDAR 
  
A.  Standard Agreements: SA-239-15CS; SA-240-15CS 
 
B.  Amendments : SA-14-11PS (Amend #7); SA-245-15FT (Amend #1) 
   
C. Interagency Agreements: none 

 
D. Letters of Understanding: none 
 
E. Rental Agreements: R-093-15; R-095-15; R-132-15; R-133-15; R-135-

15; R-138-15; R-141-15; R-143-15; R-017-16; R-018-16 
 
F.   Active Joint Powers Authority Agreements: none 

 
G. Correspondence 

Communications to the Board from the public in response to Board 
discussion or to comments made before the Board are to be listed on 
the meeting agenda and included in the Board materials as an item of 
public disclosure.  
 

i. none.  
 

ACTION: Director Cervantes motioned and Director La Belle seconded 
to review and approve the Consent Calendar. MOTION CARRIED. 
AYES: Chair Aitken, Vice Chair Mouet, Director La Belle, Director 
Tkaczyk, Director Berardino, Director Bagneris, Director Ruiz and 
Director Cervantes. NAYES: none.  

   
9.  GOVERNANCE PROCESS: 
 

A.  Committee/Task Force/Liaison Reports 
 
Vice Chair Mouet noted that the Centennial Farm Foundation met the 
prior week. He then discussed planning of fund raising efforts such as 
the next poker tournament and the Amazon Smile program.  
 
Director La Belle mentioned that the Heroes Hall Foundation Board of 
Directors had their second meeting and had another meeting 
scheduled for October. The Foundation is working on setting up all 
their accounts as well as creating a website.  
 
Director Berardino stated the Labor Day preview of the Workers 
Memorial was a wonderful event that was well attended and attracted a 
great media response. 
 
 
 
 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
September 24, 2015, PAGE 5 OF 9 

 

 

 

B.  Orange County Marketplace Rental Agreement Discussion to Amend 
Contract Requirements for Security Services 

 
Kramer stated that OC Marketplace is asking to have their lease 
agreement amended allowing them to discontinue the use of the OC 
Sheriff’s deputies and replace it with OCFEC Safety and Security staff.  
 
Nick Buffa, OCFEC Safety and Security Supervisor supported the 
recommendation stating that the Market Place is a very low-risk event and 
there has been very little criminal activity in the last five or more years.  

 
ACTION: Director Berardino motioned and Director Mouet seconded to 
discontinue, at the discretion of the Association, use of Orange County 
Sheriff Deputies (2 Deputies) to provide security services to the OC 
Market Place.  Recommend that OCFEC Safety & Security staff (5 
staff members) provide security services for each OC Market Place 
operating day to begin on Saturday 3 October 2015. MOTION 
CARRIED. AYES: Chair Aitken, Vice Chair Mouet, Director Ruiz, 
Director La Belle, Director Tkaczyk, Director Berardino, Director 
Bagneris, and Director Cervantes. NAYES: none. 
 

C.  Discussion of OCFEC Smoking Policy  
  
 Kramer introduced the item by mentioning that the Board had 

requested at the August meeting that staff bring back a report on the 
San Diego County Fair’s implementation of their non-smoking policy. 
She then asked Buffa to present the staff report.  

 
Buffa presented the staff report stating that San Diego’s staff felt the 
implementation of the non-smoking policy was less problematic than 
anticipated. All San Diego staff is trained to work with patrons to 
enforce the policy in conjunction with signage and buttons. He then 
noted that it took a couple of years for customers to really understand 
the policy and they still have issues in highly congested areas such as 
concerts.  
 
Chair Aitken mentioned that designated smoking areas were not as 
effective as hoped and supported adopting a non-smoking policy. 
 
Jeanine Robbins spoke in opposition to any changes in the current 
smoking policy, noting that improvements could be made to the 
designated areas and that staff needs to be better educated on the 
policy. She noted the lack of customer complaints about smoking. She 
then spoke about being harassed by a Board member and staff prior to 
and during Fair.  

 
Mike Robbins spoke in opposition to any changes in the current 
smoking policy and spoke about other risky behaviors at the Fair.  
 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
September 24, 2015, PAGE 6 OF 9 

 

 

 

Director Berardino stated that he understood Robbins’ point of view but 
didn’t want the discussion to turn into personal attacks. He then noted 
that it is a privilege to do business on public property, not a right.  
 
Director Tkaczyk stated that he was the Board member accused of 
harassing the Robbins. He noted that the only reason he went to their 
booth was because he had been invited Mr. Robbins and the 
discussion and his thoughts were in response to questions initiated by 
the Robbins. 
 
Director Bagneris suggested tabling the discussion and possibly 
discussing the issue with customers and clients.  
 
Director Berardino motioned to adopt a non-smoking policy for OCFEC 
produced events while allowing the sale of tobacco related products. 
 
Vice Chair Mouet noted that the idea of a non-smoking event is not a 
radical idea and seconded the motion.   
 
Daniel Robbins noted that while he dislikes smoking, he feels that the 
Board should focus on other issues.   
 
Director La Belle stated that he supported the motion but requested the 
signage be maximized and the policy be communicated in all 
marketing materials.  
 
Director Ruiz as a smoker spoke in support of the motion.  
 
ACTION: Director Berardino motioned and Director Mouet seconded to 
ban smoking at all OCEFC produce events while permitting the sale of 
tobacco products MOTION CARRIED. AYES: Chair Aitken, Vice 
Chair Mouet, Director Ruiz, Director La Belle, Director Tkaczyk, 
Director Berardino, Director Bagneris, and Director Cervantes. 
NAYES: none. 
 
Chair Aitken adjourned the meeting at 11:51 a.m. The meeting 
resumed at 12:30 p.m. 

 
D.  Discussion of Construction Management Options 
  

Director La Belle asked that this item be tabled until the Board 
discusses the 2016 Capital Projects budget.  

 
E.  Board of Directors Nominating Task Force Recommendation and 

Election of Board Officers 
  
 Director Tkaczyk, on behalf of the Nominating Task Force, presented 

the recommendation of Director Mouet as Board Chair and Director 
Berardino as Vice Chair for 2015-2016. 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
September 24, 2015, PAGE 7 OF 9 

 

 

 

 
ACTION: Director Cervantes motioned and Director Ruiz seconded to 
review and approve the Nominating Task Force recommendations for 
Gerardo Mouet as Board Chair and Nick Berardino as Vice Chair of the 
Board of Directors for 2015 – 2016. MOTION CARRIED. AYES: Chair 
Aitken, Vice Chair Mouet, Director Ruiz, Director La Belle, Director 
Tkaczyk, Director Berardino, Director Bagneris, and Director 
Cervantes. NAYES: none. 

 
F.  Pacific Amphitheatre Seat Replacement Project 

 
Kramer asked that the item be moved the October Board meeting.  
 
Chair Aitken then moved Item 9H ahead in the discussion. 
 

H.  Discussion of Policy Prohibiting the Formation of Separate Legal 
Entities 

 
Director Bagneris presented the recommendation, stating that she 
would like to see the Board continue to handle the business of the 32nd 
DAA per the guidelines that are already in place.  
 
Director LaBelle stated that he understood that the Board had certain 
responsibilities when managing the property and couldn’t envision the 
need to create further Foundations but didn’t want to limit the abilities 
of later Boards. He motioned to direct staff and legal counsel to 
develop separate MOUs for the Centennial Farm Foundation and for 
the Heroes Hall Foundation that clearly sets forth the responsibilities of 
both the District and the Foundations. 
 
Discussion ensued.  
 
Beth Refakes spoke in opposition to Director Bagneris’ 
recommendation.  
 
Reggie Mundekis spoke in opposition to Director Bagneris’ 
recommendation. 
 
ACTION: Director La Belle motioned and Director Mouet seconded to 
direct staff and legal counsel to develop separate MOUs for the 
Centennial Farm Foundation and for the Heroes Hall Foundation that 
clearly sets forth the responsibilities of both the District and the 
Foundations. MOTION CARRIED. AYES: Chair Aitken, Vice Chair 
Mouet, Director Ruiz, Director La Belle, Director Tkaczyk, Director 
Berardino, Director Bagneris, and Director Cervantes. NAYES: 
none. 
 
 
 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
September 24, 2015, PAGE 8 OF 9 

 

 

 

G.  Approval of Proposed Design Development Concept and Project 
Construction Estimate for Heroes Hall 
 
Richards presented the staff report and recommendation.  
 
Chair Aitken asked that the Board have a chance to look at the 
Enhanced Worker Safety Policy and any prequalification process that 
might be necessary.  
 
ACTION: Director Bagneris motioned and Director Cervantes 
seconded to approve the design development concept and project 
construction estimate for Heroes Hall. MOTION CARRIED. AYES: 
Chair Aitken, Vice Chair Mouet, Director Ruiz, Director La Belle, 
Director Tkaczyk, Director Berardino, Director Bagneris, and 
Director Cervantes. NAYES: none. 
 
Director Berardino voted yes in the name of Sonnie Sintino, Ernie 
Mitchell, Paul Hahn, Romiro Cardinas, and Jan Rousse. 

 
10. CLOSED SESSION  

 
Chair Aitken adjourned to Closed Session at 12:58 p.m. and the meeting 
resumed at 2:10 p.m.  
 
Chair Aitken announced that there was nothing to report out of Closed 
Session. 
 

11.   BOARD OF DIRECTORS MATTERS OF INFORMATION 
 

Chair Aitken congratulated Vice Chair Mouet and Director Berardino on 
their election to Chair and Vice Chair. She then thanked staff for a great 
recap presentation. 
 
Director Berardino complimented Chair Aitken on a great job and thanked 
his fellow Board members for electing him Vice Chair. 
 
Director Ruiz thanked Chair Aitken for her leadership and congratulated 
Vice Chair Mouet and Director Berardino. He then complimented staff on 
doing a great job.  
 
Vice Chair Mouet thanked Chair Aitken for doing a great job and thanked 
his fellow Board members for selecting him. He looked forward to working 
with Director Berardino.  
 
Director Tkaczyk thanked staff for an excellent Fair. He then asked 
McDaniel when the Board would see final numbers for the 2015 OC Fair. 
 
Kramer stated that staff will have numbers by the next meeting in October. 
 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
September 24, 2015, PAGE 9 OF 9 

 

 

 

Director Bagneris thanked staff, welcomed McDaniel, and stated that is 
looking forward to working with Vice Chair Mouet and Director Berardino. 
 
Director LaBelle congratulated Chair Aitken and all his fellow board 
members. He then congratulated all the staff on all of their hard work. 
 
Kramer stated there is 266 days to the next fair for next year 2016. 
 

12.  NEXT BOARD MEETING:  THURSDAY, OCTOBER 22, 2015 
 
13.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

Meeting adjourned at 2:17 p.m.  
 
 
 

 
______________________________________  
Ashleigh Aitken, Chair 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, Chief Executive Officer 



CONTRACT 
#

CONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION EFFORT TYPE TERM RECEIPT AMOUNT
NOT TO EXCEED 

EXPENSE AMOUNT

SA-145-15FT On hold

SA-168-15FT On hold

SA-170-15FT On hold

SA-201-15SP On hold

SA-234-15FT On hold

SA-254-15FT On hold

SA-255-15FT On hold

SA-256-15FT Quinn Company dba Quinn Power Systems Generator rental for 2015 OC Fair Fair Time 06/29/15 - 08/24/15 $113,388.00

SA-257-15FT On hold

SA-261-15SP On hold

SA-262-15SP On hold

SA-263-15SM Sound Media Fusion, LLC Acoustic design, audio testing, sound mitigation and monitoring 
consulting

Year Round 11/1/2015 - 10/31/17 $304,450.00

SA-264-15MA On hold

Amendments

CONTRACT 
#

CONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION EFFORT TYPE TERM CHANGE IN 
RECEIPT AMOUNT

CHANGE IN NOT TO 
EXCEED EXPENSE 

SA-258-13WC
(Amend #1) Lopez Works Incorporated

Provide parking lot sweeping, venue clean-up and waste collection 
services with the first option year to renew; total contract value 
increased to $2,749,080.00

Year Round 11/01/13 - 10/31/16 $1,040,075.00

SA-260-13CS 
(Amend #1)

Moor + South/Pier Management Company, LP dba Tandem
Provide corporate sponsorship acquisition and fulfillment, and new event 
sales program services with the first option year to renew; total contract 
value increased to $1,006,500.00

Year Round 12/01/13 - 11/30/16 $345,000.00

SA-21-13AM
(Amend #1)

On hold

OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER

STANDARD AGREEMENTS FOR BOARD APPROVAL

OCTOBER 2015

Page 1 of 2



CONTRACT 
#

CONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION EFFORT TYPE TERM RECEIPT AMOUNT
NOT TO EXCEED 

EXPENSE AMOUNT

OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER

STANDARD AGREEMENTS FOR BOARD APPROVAL

OCTOBER 2015

SA-253-15SP
(Amend #1)

On hold

SA-200-15SP
(Amend #1)

On hold

SA-166-15FT 
(Amend # 1)

United Rentals (North America) Inc. Additional funding for Heavy Equipment raising the new contract ceiling 
value to $66,901.94.

Year Round 06/01/15 - 08/31/15 $4,401.94

Interagency Agreements

CONTRACT 
#

CONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION EFFORT TYPE TERM CHANGE IN 
RECEIPT AMOUNT

CHANGE IN NOT TO 
EXCEED EXPENSE 

Letters of Understanding

LOU # DEMONSTRATOR DESCRIPTION EFFORT TYPE TERM RECEIPT AMOUNT
NOT TO EXCEED 

EXPENSE AMOUNT

Page 2 of 2































































































RA # CONTRACTOR EVENT DESCRIPTION FACILITIES CONTRACT DATES CONTRACT AMOUNT

R-055-15 Southern California Indian Center, Inc. 47th Annual Indian POW WOW Cultural Festival 
Anaheim Building,              
Los Alamitos Building,        
OC Promenade

11/20/15-11/23/15 $29,276.50

R-058-15 International Interior Design Association 
Southern California Chapter NeoConnect 2015 Trade Show Trade Show The Hangar 10/13/15 $9,927.50

R-075-15 Newport Mesa Unified School District NMUSD College and Career Night College Night Costa Mesa Building 10/21/15 $11,977.75

R-144-15 GP Sandy Hyundai Ride & Drive Dealership Training Huntington Beach, 1/2 Lot 
I, Festival Field Asphalt 10/04/15-10/08/15 $41,176.50

R-145-15 Vagabondias Vagabondias - Trailer Rally Trailer Rally Campground 11/13/15-11/15/15 $25.00 per night per RV

R-146-15 Trilogy RVers Trilogy RVers - Trailer Rally Trailer Rally Campground 11/11/15-11/15/15 $25.00 per night per RV

R-147-15 Research Design Specialists RDS - Automotive Market Research Car Research The Hangar 09/28/15-10/03/15 $23,788.00

R-148-15 Travel Bees Travel Bees - Trailer Rally Trailer Rally Campground 11/20/15-11/22/15 $25.00 per night per RV

R-149-15 Absolute Event Solutions Big Bite Sugar Rush Consumer Show The Hangar 12/04/15-12/07/15 $17,841.00 

R-017-16 Approved as part of the September 
Consent Calendar

R-018-16 Approved as part of the September 
Consent Calendar

R-023-16 Kristen Cheever Mason-Cheever Wedding Wedding Millennium Barn, Silo 05/07/16-05/08/16 $5,328.00 

OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER
RENTAL AGREEMENTS FOR BOARD APPROVAL

OCTOBER 2015





















































JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY PROJECT # PROJECT DATE PROJECT DESCRIPTION PRIMARY CONTRACTOR
APPROVED 

PROJECT TOTAL

Continuing
California Fair Financing Authority C0732X.454 02/01/12 Main Mall Renovation Sanders Construction $3,402,000.00
California Fair Financing Authority 03211031, Const 01/10/12 Pacific Amphitheatre Renovation - Phase I Construction Innovative Construction Solutions $2,022,634.00
California Fair Financing Authority 03211031, Arch 01/18/13 Pacific Amphitheatre Renovation - Architecture MAKE Architecture $575,792.00
California Fair Financing Authority 03211031, Geo 01/18/13 Pacific Amphitheatre Renovation - Geotechnical Willdan Geotechnical $21,001.00
California Fair Financing Authority 03213031/B, Const 08/15/13 Pac Amp Berm Renovation - Phase II CFFA $12,806,857.70 
California Fair Financing Authority 03215024 05/29/15 Pac Amp Seat Replacement - Solicitation of Bids CFFA $7,100.00 
New

Revision/Amendment

OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER

ACTIVE JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY AGREEMENTS

As of September 30, 2015





























































































 

Board of Directors Agenda Report 
MEETING DATE: OCTOBER. 22, 2015  ITEM NUMBER: 9A 

 

 

SUBJECT:  Committee / Task Force / Liaison Reports 
 
DATE:   October 16, 2015 
  
FROM:    Ashleigh Aitken, Board Chair  
  
PRESENTATION BY:   Ashleigh Aitken, Board Chair 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Information item only.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
To assure compliance with the Bagley-Keene Act, Committee reports are only for 
the purpose of the Committee chair, Task Force members or Liaison to provide a 
verbal update. Should the Board want to discuss any Committee work item not 
already on the agenda; those would need to be agendized for a future Board 
meeting.  

 
i. Centennial Farm Foundation Board (Vice Chair Mouet) 
ii. Heroes Hall Veteran’s Foundation Board (Director Berardino, Director La Belle) 

 



 

Board of Directors Agenda Report 
MEETING DATE: OCTOBER 18, 2015  ITEM NUMBER: 9B 

 

 

SUBJECT: Arlington Bio-Swale Update 
 
DATE:   October 16, 2015 
  
FROM:  Kathy Kramer, CEO 
  
PRESENTATION BY:   Kathy Kramer, CEO 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

  
At the Board’s discretion to participate with the City of Costa Mesa’s Arlington Drive 
Bioswale project. 
  
SUMMARY OF HISTORICAL BACKGROUND AND REQUIREMENTS FOR THE 
ASSOCIATION’S WATER QUALITY MANAGEMENT 

 
According to the City, although the Bioswale would collect “first flush” runoff, its 
function is primarily a water treatment facility and not as a drainage facility. The 
Bioswale is not intended to serve in place of the drainage facilities identified in either 
the City’s Master Plan of Drainage or the Association’s Master Plan or those facilities 
adopted for implementation in the Association’s Master Plan. 
 
The Association completed a due-diligence outreach to understand the obligations of 
the master plan, water quality management plan and the settlement agreement 
between the Association and the City of Costa Mesa by hiring Keeton Kreitzer 
Consulting and JT Civil Engineering. The consultant’s findings are attached to this 
report. 
 
The Association’s Master Plan of 2003 identifies a Water Quality Management Plan 
that includes a comprehensive storm drain and water quality system designed to 
collect and convey runoff from the Association into existing and planned City storm 
drains along Arlington Drive. Storm drain improvements that will be incorporated into 
project design include extending the 54-inch reinforced concrete pipe (RCP) in 
Arlington Drive approximately 2,000 feet, with six storm drain laterals connected to 
the on-site system and a Bioswale.  
 
In early 2013, the State and County required the Association to obtain an MS4 
permit. This permit outlines State regulations for mitigation of surface water runoff 
during dry and wet weather seasons as well as set guidelines on monitoring and 
controlling pollutants in storm water runoff. Polluted storm water runoff is commonly 
transported through Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems (MS4s), from which it 
is often discharged untreated into local water bodies. This permit requires all 



agencies to perform testing on the discharge into the local water body, which for the 
Association is the Newport Back Bay, Delhi Channel. The Association has been 
working with UC Davis Co-Op on a mitigation strategy plan. The Master Plan 
identifies the utilization of a Bioswale as part of, but not limited to, the requirements 
from the Associations’ Environmental Impact Report and Storm Water Management 
program. This only addresses water treatment and does not address storm drain 
issues. 
 
A settlement agreement between the Association and the City of Costa Mesa 
entered into August 18, 1980, states the Association agrees to provide subsurface 
storm drain on the South side of Arlington Drive to the extent that it accommodates 
storm water that emanates from the fairgrounds. In addition, all street improvement 
work in conformance with City standards to the center line of adjacent fronting 
streets shall include the following: subgrade preparation, asphalt paving and base, 
concrete curb, gutter, and sidewalks, streetlights, fire hydrants and connections to 
existing water mains and street trees. Association has validated that we are legally 
obligated to fulfill considered outlined in the agreement with the City of Costa Mesa 
dated August 18, 1980. 
 
 
ASSOCIATION COMPLETES REQUIRED STORM DRAIN PROJECT 
 
Estimated costs to meet requirements of the Association’s Master Plan and City of Costa 
Mesa settlement agreement. 
 
(Based on Preliminary Opinion of Probable Cost by JT Engineering, July 1, 2015) 
 
Probable Project Costs:  
Storm Drain Improvements        $1,366,811.80 
 
Roadway Improvements:            $662,857.70 
$576,398 + 15% Contingency ($86,459.70) 
 
Total probable costs:         $2,029,669.50 
 
In March of 2014 the City of Costa Mesa presented to the Association’s Board of 
Directors a proposal to develop a Bioswale Project along Arlington Street. The City 
applied for and received approval of a $1.69 million grant from the Orange County 
Transportation Authority pursuant to the Environmental Cleanup Allocation Program. 
Total cost of the Arlington Drive Bioswale project is approximately $2.6 million.  
  
Scenario 1: 
ARLINGTON BIOSWALE PROJECT – SOUTH SIDE OF ARLINGTON DRIVE 
 
If the City of Costa Mesa constructs proposed Bioswale on South side of Arlington 
Drive (paralleling fairgrounds property line) they will install the storm drain required 
by the Association, make all required roadway improvements and manage the 
project. 
 
City of Costa Mesa constructs Bioswale on South side of Arlington Drive   $2,600,000.00 
 
Financial contribution by the Association to the City of Costa Mesa  
Bioswale project.         $1,000,000.00 
 



 
 
The Association will be required to perform on-site inspection as needed during the project. 
This will require an LOU with CFFA. 
 
CFFA’s fees are usually a percentage of the project cost.    COST TBD 
 
Project impact on EQC             COST TBD 
(Pending Further Review) 
 
Pending Project Issues: 
The Association and City of Costa Mesa share encroachment right-of-way issues 
crossing both right-of-way entities. 
 
To facilitate this project the City of Costa Mesa would agree to allow the Association 
to retain the use of the current encroachment. 
 
Scenario 2: 
ARLINGTON BIOSWALE PROJECT – NORTH SIDE OF ARLINGTON DRIVE 
 
If the City of Costa Mesa constructs proposed Bioswale on North side of Arlington 
Drive, The Association would be responsible for the construction of the storm drain 
and roadway improvements per settlement agreement and master plan.  
 
City of Costa Mesa constructs Bioswale on North side of Arlington Drive        $2,600,000.00 
 
Association Constructs Storm Drain/Street Improvements    $2,029,669.50  
(Estimated Cost)  
 
Project Impact on EQC: 
(Pending Further Review)         COST TBD 
 
Pending Project Issues: 
City of Costa Mesa would require the Association to cure current encroachments on 
City property. 
 
The City of Costa Mesa would re-align Arlington Drive which would shift the 
alignment south 5 feet away from Association’s property line, bringing the traffic 
closer to the fairgrounds.  
 
Reduction of usable space for Association’s gate operation functions as well as 
ingress and egress of property. 
 
The City of Costa Mesa would require the Association to complete the storm drain 
and street improvements as outlined in the 1980 settlement agreement prior to the 
Bioswale project completion. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Attachments: 
 
City of Costa Mesa 
Inter Office Memorandum 
March 3, 2014 
Subject: Environmental Cleanup/Water Quality Grant 
 
August 18, 1980 Agreement between 32nd District Agricultural Association and City 
of Costa Mesa   
 
Keeton Kreitzer Consulting Memorandum – June 23, 2015 
Arlington Drive Bioswale/OCFEC Drainage Facilities 
 
JT Engineering – July 1, 2015 

 













































 

Board of Directors Agenda Report 
MEETING DATE: OCTOBER 22, 2015  ITEM NUMBER: 9C 

 

 

SUBJECT: Approve Letter of Understanding with CFFA Regarding 
Completion of Heroes Hall Architectural Design and 
Construction Documents 

 
DATE:   October 16, 2015 
  
FROM:  Michele Richards, VP Business Development 
  
PRESENTATION BY:   Michele Richards, VP Business Development 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the Letter of Understanding (LOU) with California Fair Financing Authority 
(CFFA) regarding completion of Heroes Hall architectural design and construction 
documents.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
At the Board meeting September 27, 2015, the Board approved the design 
development concept and project construction estimate for Heroes Hall. The total 
cost of the Heroes Hall architectural design and construction documents project is 
estimated to be $190,366.00. The project is scheduled to commence immediately 
(see LOU attached). 
 



 

 

 
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING 

“Memorial Gardens/Hero’s Hall 
Building Architectural Design & Construction Documents” 

 
To: Rebecca Desmond, Deputy Executive Director   Date:  September 21, 2015 
 California Fairs Financing Authority 
 
From: 32nd DAA, Orange County Fair & Event Center 
 
Subject: Letter of Understanding No. 15-042 (CFFA Project No. 032-15-042) 
 
This Letter of Understanding (“LOU”) is entered into between California Fairs Financing Authority (“Authority”) 
and the 32nd DAA, Orange County Fair & Event Center (“Fair”) pursuant to the Memorandum of Understanding 
between Authority and Fair dated  January 1, 1997 to complete the scope of services set forth in Exhibit A, attached 
hereto (“Project”). 
 
PROJECT: See Exhibit A, September 21, 2015 
SCHEDULE:    Immediately through completion 
FUNDING: Fair Funded 
 
1. The Fair shall pay Authority for Authority’s actual costs and expenses in connection with the Project, including 
staff time, overhead, project administration, project inspection fees and third party charges (“Project Cost”), per 
Authority’s fee schedule, where applicable.  These costs shall be paid in advance, or later as directed by Authority. 
 
2. On or before October 2, 2015, Fair shall encumber and maintain funds, in the amount of ONE HUNDRED 
NINETY THOUSAND, SIX HUNDRED and SEVENTY DOLLARS and 00/100 CENTS ($190,670.00), 
which is the current estimated Project Cost.  The Fair shall set up a separate liability account for these funds and 
provide periodic balance updates to Authority upon request.  These funds will be disbursed only as directed, from 
time to time, by Authority.  Authority will notify Fair in writing in the event that the Authority determines that the 
estimated remaining Project Cost exceeds the funds in the separate liability account.  Upon receipt of such notice, 
Fair will immediately encumber additional funds in the separate liability account. 
  
TERMINATION:  Either party may terminate this LOU without further penalty upon giving the other party twenty-
four (24) hours written notice and completing any outstanding or non-revocable obligations.  The Fair’s obligation 
to pay the Project Cost shall survive termination of this LOU. 
 
 
________________________________________            _________________________________________ 
Rebecca Desmond  Date Kathy Kramer      Date 
Deputy Executive Director Chief Executive Officer                 
California Fair Services Authority OC Fair & Event Center 



EXHIBIT A (LOU 15-042) 

Memorial Gardens/Hero’s Hall   
Architectural Design & Construction Documents 

 
September 21, 2015 
 
Project No. 032-15-042 

ORANGE COUNTY FAIR & EVENT CENTER 
 
The cost proposal is based upon the following assumptions: 
 

A. The site of the proposed project is at the 32nd DAA/Orange County Fairgrounds (Fair). 
 

B. The contracts will be between CFFA and the Consultant (ATI Architects). 
 

C. Upon completion of design/construction documents CFFA will upon direction from OC 
Fair will submit a new LOU to bid this project for construction. 

 
The total cost of the “Memorial Gardens/Hero’s Hall Architectural Design & Construction 

Documents project, is estimated to be $190,670.00.  This cost includes the consultant scope increase cost 

contingency of 10% for scope increase or unforeseen issues, and CFFA administration fees.  The project 

administration fee for CFFA to provide support for this project is $9,366.00, which is based upon 6% of 

the construction cost.  Additional CFFA administration fees will be incurred based upon the amount of the 

construction contingency funding that is utilized, and will be calculated at 6% of the actual amount 

expended.  The administration support fee is comprised of some contract preparation, accounting, and 

contractor interface assistance.  A breakdown of the total cost follows. 
 

 
 
 
 



Orange County Fair and Event Center 
Memorial Gardens/Hero’s Hall Architectural Construction Documents 
LOU 15-042 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
Orange County Fair & Event Center 

Memorial Gardens/Hero’s Hall 
 Architectural Design & Construction Documents 

PROJECT DESIGN COSTS 
Consultant Proposal  $                        156,100.00   
Misc. Costs, i.e. shipping, printing, etc..  $                               400.00   

 Document Sub-Total   $          156,500.00  
CONSULTANT SCOPE CONTINGENCY (10%)  $                          15,610.00  $            15,610.00  

Travel-Hotel  $                            5,000.00  $              5,000.00 

ADMINISTRATION FEES   
Project Administration Fee (6%)  $              9,366.00  

  

Total Costs, with Fees  $           190,670.00  
  

*Only actual costs directly associated with any utilized construction contingency funds will be subject to CFFA’s Administration Fee.  

It is scheduled that the project will commence immediately.  The Fair will be billed monthly upon receipt 

of the Consultants invoice, with the project administration fee being billed at the same time.  Any direct 

or reimbursable costs will be reimbursed, in arrears, on a monthly basis upon receipt of invoice from 

CFFA that will include copies of applicable receipts.  If any third party professional services/consultant 

outside services, contracted by CFFA on behalf of this project, are required, they will be paid directly by 

the Fair within seven (7) days upon receipt of an approved and signed payment authorization from CFFA.  

 

The performance of CFFA’s scope of services inures to the benefit of the Fair and meets.  To accomplish 

these services, CFFA may engage third parties.  Additionally, known and unknown third parties may be 

affected by the performance of this Letter of Understanding (LOU).  Therefore, the Fair agrees to 

reimburse CFFA for all costs and expenses incurred in connection with the Project or arising out of the 

performance of this LOU, including, but not limited to, all costs and expenses arising out of claims 

asserted by third parties against CFFA. Provided, however, the Fair shall not reimburse CFFA for costs 

and expenses incurred as a result of CFFA’s sole, active negligence or willful misconduct. 

 

Should a dispute arise and either party is required to institute any action or proceeding to enforce any 

provision of this LOU or for damages by reason of an alleged breach of any provision hereof, the 

prevailing party shall be entitled to receive all costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees 



Orange County Fair and Event Center 
Memorial Gardens/Hero’s Hall Architectural Construction Documents 
LOU 15-042 

Page 3 of 3 
 

and disbursements) incurred by such prevailing party in connection with such action or proceeding.  

CFFA will take no further action until the Fair accepts the terms and conditions of this proposal.  Upon 

your acceptance of this proposal, this proposal shall be incorporated into a LOU and shall become a part 

thereof. 

 

CFFA represents and warrants that it has the statutory and/or legal authority to enter into contracts with 

contractor and third parties for the express and specific purpose of performing the work identified in the 

LOU.  CFFA further represents and warrants that it has the statutory and/or legal authority to enter into 

LOU 15-042, through the undersigned party. 

 

The Fair represents and warrants that it has the statutory and/or legal authority to enter into this LOU 15-

042, through the undersigned party, to obtain the benefits of the agreements referenced above, and that 

Kathy Kramer is the Fair’s representative for purposes of authorizing CFFA to make expenditures or enter 

into contracts.  If you have any questions, please call Bryan Eubanks at (916) 263-6121. 

 



 

Board of Directors Agenda Report 
MEETING DATE: OCTOBER 22, 2015  ITEM NUMBER: 9D 

 

 

SUBJECT:  Ratification of Updated OCFEC Smoking Policy 
 
DATE:   October 16, 2015 
  
FROM:  Michele Richards, VP Business Development 
  
PRESENTATION BY:   Michele Richards, VP Business Development 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Review and ratify updated OCFEC smoking policy language. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
At the September 27, 2015 meeting, the Board of Directors voted to update OCFEC 
policy to prohibit smoking at OCFEC self-produced events. While the change in 
policy has already been approved by the Board, staff presents the following updated 
language reflecting this decision for ratification by the Board of Directors. 
 

By state law and in the interest of public health, smoking shall not be 
permitted in or within 20 feet of any State of California building, including the 
Santa Ana Pavilion area, OC Promenade area, Centennial Farm, Pacific 
Amphitheatre seating area, and Arena grandstand and bleacher seating 
areas. This policy includes the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and 
oil/wax pens. 
 
During OCFEC-produced events (i.e. OC Fair, Imaginology) smoking and 
the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens is prohibited. 
  
Year-round event promoters may adopt more restrictive policies at their 
discretion, and with the prior approval of the Association. 

 



 

Board of Directors Agenda Report 
MEETING DATE: OCTOBER 22, 2015  ITEM NUMBER: 9E 

 

 

SUBJECT: Review and Approve the Appointment of the Board 
Chair to serve on behalf of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association as an Elector for the California Fair Services 
Authority (CFSA) Board of Directors Elections 

 
DATE:   October 16, 2015 
  
FROM:    Kathy Kramer, CEO  
  
PRESENTATION BY:   Kathy Kramer, CEO 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
OC Fair & Event Center Board of Directors adopt the following resolution: 
 
Be it resolved that the OCFEC Board Chair is hereby appointed to serve on behalf of 
the OC Fair & Event Center (32nd District Agricultural Association) as an elector for 
California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Board of Directors elections. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
According to Policy 4.2.7, the CEO or the CEO’s designee is the Association’s 
representative to the following organizations: Western Fairs Association, California 
Fair Services Authority, and the California Construction Authority. 
 
 



 

Board of Directors Agenda Report 
MEETING DATE: OCTOBER 22, 2015  ITEM NUMBER: 9F 

 

 

SUBJECT: The 32nd District Agricultural Association Board of Directors 
delegates authority to execute all forms of agreements, 
contracts, and purchase orders without further authorization 
from the Board of Directors (Policy 2.3.5). All such 
agreements, contracts and purchase orders are to be 
submitted to the Board of Directors for review at subsequent 
meetings. This delegation is subject to board review at each 
annual meeting 

 
DATE:  October 16, 2015 
  
FROM:   Kathy Kramer, CEO  
  
PRESENTATION BY:   Kathy Kramer, CEO 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Approve the following delegation of authority: The 32nd District Agricultural 
Association Board of Directors delegates contractual authority to the CEO, Kathy 
Kramer, up to $50,000 for general contracts and $300,000 for talent guarantees. 
Michele Richards, Vice President Business Development, and Debbye McDaniel, 
Vice President Finance and Administration, may sign contractual instruments as 
delegated by the CEO within the limits of the aforementioned contractual authority.  
Additionally, the Board authorizes an exemption for staff to issue payment for billings 
in excess of $50,000 via the “Over $50,000 Expenditure Budget Schedule” which is 
submitted with each annual budget or an approved contract, LOU or rental 
agreement or is payment for utilities, Cal Card expenditures, insurance, payroll or 
State mandated employee services. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The 32nd District Agricultural Association Board of Directors delegates authority 
to the CEO to execute all forms of agreements without further authorization from the 
Board of Directors (Policy Reference 2.3.5):  
 



The CEO may not Execute a check or purchase commitment of greater 
than $50,000, unless such commitment has been authorized by the 
Board via the “Over $50,000 Expenditure Budget Schedule” which is 
submitted with each annual budget or an approved contract, LOU or 
rental agreement or is payment for utilities, Cal Card expenditures, 
insurance, payroll or State mandated employee services. For expenses 
related to emergencies or construction change orders that exceed the 
$50,000 limit, approval for such expenses requires dual approval of the 
CEO and Chair of the Board.  In the absence of the Chair, the Vice Chair 
can approve such an expense. Any expense approved by the CEO and 
the Chair, or in the Chair’s absence the Vice Chair, shall be reported to 
the full Board at the next Board meeting. An exception exists for talent 
guarantees which are no greater than $300,000. Splitting orders to avoid 
this limit is not acceptable.  
 

All such agreements are to be submitted to the Board of Directors for review at 
subsequent meetings. 
   
The Association is obligated to comply with any and all applicable portions of the 
California Public Contracts Code, the State Contracting Manual, the Department of 
General Services’ State Administrative Manual and guidelines for procurement 
(Policy Reference 2.4.5).   
 
This delegation is further defined by Policy 2.4.5: 

 
The CEO will not procure any goods or services without complying with 
any and all applicable portions of the California Public Contracts Code, 
the State Contracting Manual, the Department of General Services’ State 
Administrative Manual and guidelines for procurement. 

 
 and Policy 2.6.4: 

 
The CEO will not create obligations to consultants and contract workers 
for more than $50,000 and/or for longer than one year in duration. 

 
This delegation is subject to board review at each annual meeting. 
 
 


	October 22 Agenda
	CEO's Operational Announcements & Updates
	OCFEC Finacials as of September 30, 2015
	Business Unit Financial Results
	Cash Flow Summary by Business Unit
	Balance Sheet
	Income Statement
	Statement of Cash Flows

	AP Checks Summary
	Electronic Payments Summary
	Premium Checks Summary
	October Events Calendar
	November Events Calendar

	Minutes
	Board Meeting held September 24, 2015 

	Consent Calendar
	Standard Agreements
	Rental Agreements 
	Active Joint Powers Authority Agreements

	Governance Process
	A. Committee / Task Force / Liaison Reports
	B. Arlington Bio-Swale Update
	C. Approve Letter of Understanding with CFFA Regarding Completion of HeroesHall Architectural Design and Construction Documents
	D. Ratification of Updated OCFEC Smoking Policy
	E. Review and Approve the Appointment of the Board Chair to serve on behalf ofthe 32nd District Agricultural Association as an Elector for the California FairServices Authority (CFSA) Board of Directors Elections
	F. The 32nd District Agricultural Association Board of Directors delegates authorityto execute all forms of agreements, contracts, and purchase orders withoutfurther authorization from the Board of Directors (Policy 2.3.5). All suchagreements, contracts and purchase orders are to be submitted to the Board ofDirectors for review at subsequent meetings. This delegation is subject toboard review at each annual meeting




